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NEER
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

YITESHES

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Capital VC
Limited (carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited)
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), it
is my pleasure to present you the Group’s audited annual results
for the year ended 30 September 2023 (the “Year” or “Fiscal Year
2022/23%).

BUSINESS REVIEW, IMPORTANT EVENTS
OCCURRED AFTER THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR
AND PROSPECT

In Year 2023, the investment market in China and Hong Kong
extended the difficult time of prior years. The tension between
US and China, and high interest rate of US Dollars continue to
frustrate the investment market. The performance of most stocks
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) was affected accordingly. Hang Seng index maintained
at a relative low level during the Fiscal Year 2022/23. It marked at
17,223 points as at 30 September 2022 and 17,809 points as at 29
September 2023, the last trading day of the Fiscal Year 2022/23.

In such pessimistic market atmosphere, the Group’s listed
securities performed unsatisfactorily. The loss on the Group’s listed
investments increased from approximately HK$40.9 million in the
year ended 30 September 2022 to approximately HK$109.9 million
in the Year.

4 EHAIRERAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED

AANEHURKREHAEZRARAF (LCNI VC
Limited E M ETBEEXER) ([ARA)KEME
RA(ABIAER)2EES ([EFF]) MAR
EAREBE_T_=FAA=TRALFR ([FFE]
H T —=FRRFE)EBRZ2FEE-

EBEOE MBRFERKRBRECENRER
KA =

RZTBZ=F FEAREENKRETBLEER L
FHORBEH - FEZRBEUAERETN S REE
SREMBIR - REBBAERSHMBRDA ([BX
) ERRZEBRENRBIINIBELE-BELE
BR T/ Z=FHRFELFEEYEM-E
RZEZZFNA=THAR17223% R_T==%F
NAZ+HAB(ZE-= /—=0BFEEEZSA)
717,809% -

FEMHEENTERE T ASELMHEHF RSB
KR -AE@Mz EMEEBERABEE T ==
LA =+ 8 1L FE 440,900,000/ T 1 & A FE
#)47109,900,0005% JT °



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

HITESWES

In connection with the Group’s unlisted investments, the Group
continued its focus on bonds investments, which brought constant
cash flows to the Group. The Group subscribed four bonds in total.
All of these bonds are unsecured bonds, and their issuers are
Hong Kong listed companies. The terms of these four bonds are
between one and five years and the coupon rates are between
8% and 12%. During the Year, the Group redeemed a bond issued
by AMCO United Holding Limited, a Hong Kong listed company,
with principal of HK$30 million. The principal and outstanding
coupon totaling approximately HK$33.4 million have been fully
collected during the Year. In addition to the above subscription
and redemption of the bonds, one of the bond investments, with
principal of HK$18 million, was written off during the Year. That
bond issuer is Sincere Smart International Limited (“SSIL”), which
was a private company and dissolved in July 2023. Loss on
investment in the bonds issued by SSIL of approximately HK$18.6
million was recorded during the Year. The Group has taken legal
actions against the director of SSIL to recover the investment in
the bonds issued by SSIL.

The total carrying amounts of the bonds held by the Group
reported in the financial statements of this report decreased from
HK$165.8 million as at 30 September 2022 to HK$124.7 million as
at 30 September 2023. The decrease in the value of bonds held
by the Group is principally due to the aforesaid redemption of the
bonds with principal of HK$30 million and write-off of the bonds
issued by SSIL with principal of HK$18 million. Aggregate bonds
interest of approximately HK$16.1 million was received during the
Year.

There is no major important event affecting the Group which
occurred since the end of the year ended 30 September 2023.

Looking forward, facing the tumultuous relationship between
the United States and China and sustaining high interest rate of
US Dollars, we expect global investment will not be very optimistic
in the coming year. Accordingly, we will continue to adopt cautious
measures to manage the Group’s investment portfolio.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

YITESHES

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express our
gratitude to all management team and staff members for their
dedication and contribution in the Fiscal Year 2022/23. We would
also like to extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to our
shareholders and business partners for their continued support to

as well as their confidence in the Group.

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 December 2023
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kong Fanpeng (“Mr. Kong”), aged 55, has been an
Executive Director since 18 March 2010. He obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Finance and Auditing from Zhongshan University, the
PRC. Mr. Kong was a manager of Huizhou TCL Information System
Limited and Guangzhou Bada Telecommunications Limited. He
also worked as the general manager of the PRC market and an
executive director respectively at Chief Securities Limited in Hong
Kong and Excalibur Securities Limited in (now known as “Sino
Capital Securities Limited”) Hong Kong, specialising in risk averse
arbitrage trading in both Shenzhen and Hong Kong capital market.
Mr. Kong was the chairman and an executive director of Shenzhen
Wansheng Investment Management Company Limited. He has a
wealth of experience in the Hong Kong securities market for over
25 years and is well versed in investment in the second board
market in both China and Hong Kong. Mr. Kong is the chief partner
of Shenzhen CAS Bright Stone Investment Management Limited.

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (“Mr. Chan”), aged 59, has been
an Executive Director since 21 November 2012. He obtained
a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of Business
Administration of The University of South Florida in the United
States of America in 1988. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in
dealing in securities, fund management, corporate management,
corporate finance and managing investment companies listed
under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules. Currently, Mr. Chan is one of
the representatives of Evergrande Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
and a licensed person to carry out type 4 (advising on securities)
and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”). Mr. Chan is currently an executive director
of several investment companies listed under Chapter 21 of the
Listing Rules, namely, China New Economy Fund Limited (stock
code: 80), Goldstone Investment Group Limited (stock code: 901),
Capital Realm Financial Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 204),
China Investment and Finance Group Limited (stock code: 1226)
and China Innovation Investment Limited (stock code: 1217). Since
February 2016, Mr. Chan has been appointed as an executive
director of China Trends Holdings Limited (“CTH”) which was listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange and was re-designated as a non-
executive director of CTH with effective from 1 December 2020.
The listing of CTH’s shares has been cancelled with effect from 23
August 2021. Since November 2018, Mr. Chan has been appointed
as an executive director of National Investments Fund Limited
(“NIFL"), which was listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
The listing of NIFL's shares has been cancelled with effect from 20
September 2022.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
EERE

Apart from the above, Mr. Chan was executive director of an
investment company listed under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules,
namely Core Economy Investment Limited (stock code: 339) from
January 2021 to June 2021.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Ming Gin (“Mr. Lee”), aged 38, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 6 March
2013. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor Degree of Quantitative Finance
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is experienced
in securities, insurance advisory and fund management having
been working for several wealth and asset management firms.
Mr. Lee was a continuous education training tutor and is currently
an examination committee member of the Institute of Financial
Planners of Hong Kong, and his professional qualifications include
Certified Trust Practitioner, Certified Financial Consultant, Certified
Financial Planner, member of the Hong Kong Trustee’s Association
and the Hong Kong Securities Institution.

Ms. Lai Fun Yin, aged 39, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 27 June
2017. She has over 7 years solid sales and marketing experience
in travel industry.

Mr. Cheung Wai Kin (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 42, has been
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 27 September 2017. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and he has over 15
years accounting and auditing experience. Mr. Cheung is currently
an independent non-executive director of C&N Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8430), the shares of which are listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 30 September 2023 (the “Year”), the Group
reported a negative turnover of approximately HK$92.3 million
(Year ended 30 September 2022 (“Year 2022"): HK$25.1 million)
and net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$149.1 million (Year 2022: HK$88.1 million).

During the Fiscal Year 2022/23, the Group’s loss on listed
investments increased from HK$40.9 million in Year 2022 to loss
of HK$109.9 million in the Year. The loss on listed investments
for the Year of approximately HK$109.9 million represented net
realised loss of approximately HK$24.4 million and net unrealised
loss of approximately HK$86.4 million, net of dividend income of
approximately HK$0.9 million. Set out below are further information
of these net realised and unrealised losses:

Bt 7% B B8

REBEE-_TE-_ZFAAZ+ALEE([XAF
El) AEEEHS A RS X5 492,300,000 T (#
BT _FNAZTHEFE(ZEZZFF]):
25,100,000/ ) LA R AR A B R EH B ARG B RF
%4 #9149,100,000% 7T (—Z = — 4 ¥ : 88,100,000/5
TT) °

RZEZZ /ZZFUREE AEBLETERE
Bi¥EHR - T =~ — FZ 140,900,000/ T ig 11 & A F
JE #) &5 18109,900,0008 70 - A F [E I E KB
109,900,0007% JT 48 B, & I3 /&5 18 )5 58 £924,400,000/%8 7T
T R 235 55 18 75 58 4986,400,00078 7T 1B A% B A
#7900,000/5 L - BRAMLEE B R R AREHEIBFEN
EZERFEINMOT

NET REALISED LOSS CEAEERR
Unrealised
loss/(gain)
Investment Disposal recognised in Net realised
Company name Stock code costs consideration prior years gain/(loss)
RBEEE
BRzASE EBESANES
NCIEE IR 43K 5% REBRK HERE BB (KH) (B8)FE
HK$’ million HK$’ million HKS$’ million HK$’ million
BEEBT BEET AEET BEET
China Carbon Neutral Development Group Limited 1372 18.1 8.1 1.0 (9.0)
PERTPMEREEGER QA
Space Group Holdings Limited 2448 18.3 9.3 - (9.0)
EFEEEZERER QA
Silver Tide Holdings Limited 1943 14.8 ;353 (1.8) (3.3)
HoRERBR A A
Others (8.1
Hith
(24.4)

*

Net realised loss form others represents realised gain from others
of approximately HK$3.0 million net of realised loss from others of
approximately HK$6.1 million.

* H B #EEEFEEHME 235 ka5 493,000,000/ T
OB E fh B %35 5518 496,100,000/ 7T ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENwR DM

The shares of the companies mentioned under Net Realised
Loss above are listed on Main Board the Stock Exchange, and no
stock included in others contributed the realised gain over HK$1
million or realised loss over HK$2 million during the Year.

NET UNREALISED LOSS
The net unrealised loss for the Year of approximately HK$86.4
million represents the unrealised gain of approximately HK$32.4

million net of unrealised loss of approximately HK$118.8 million.

Set out below is the breakdown of the aforesaid unrealised gain

EXCERBEFEET LD E 2 M5 8
RFTERLET BERAFE BEFARLMRARZK
FHEECE R W #1,000,0008 T E # I EBEER
2,000,000 7T °

RERBEEE

AN [E R B IR B 18 )F 5 4986,400,00078 TTIE R 1
It %% %932,400,0007% 7T 30 B 7K & 35 /&5 15 49118,800,000
PETT e EXATHLR BRI R E IR 2 RS a0 T

and loss:
Company name Stock code Unrealised gain Unrealised loss
IR R A5 RERWEH RERER
HK$'million HK$'million
BEATL BEAETL
Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited 627 15.8 -
BERBEBREREERFRAA
hmvod Limited 8103 71 -
hmvod 18 8 5 FR 22 7]
WLS Holdings Limited 8021 - 31.6
ERZERERAF
SEEC Media Group Limited 205 - 16.0
BEAERERERA A
China Jicheng Holdings Limited 1027 - 6.8
PREERERBRAR
Smart City Development Holdings Limited 8268 - 6.2
BHERERERAAF
Hao Wen Holdings Limited 8019 - 5.8
fESERCB R A A
Others 9.5 52.4
H Al
32.4 118.8

All the shares of the companies mentioned under Net
Unrealised Loss above are listed on either Main Board or GEM of
the Stock Exchange, and no stock included in others contributed
the unrealised gain or loss over HK$4 million during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

In connection with the unlisted equity investments, the Group
recorded loss on written off of approximately HK$2.1 million
during the Year. In Year 2022, unrealised loss of HK$0.9 million and
realised loss of HK$4.1 million were recorded.

Owing to the overall increase in interest rate since the second
half of Year 2022, the global debt market during the Year did not
perform well and many enterprises are in financial difficulties.
Accordingly, the Group has adopted prudent approach on the
valuation of its bonds investment and outstanding receivables.
Expected credit loss on financial assets at amortised cost, net of
reversal of approximately HK$9.6 million and that on deposits and
other receivables, net of reversal of approximately HK$3.3 million
were recorded during the Year.

As a result of the unsatisfactory performance of listed and
unlisted financial assets investments, and the prudent approach on
the valuation of bonds investment and outstanding receivables as
mentioned above, the Group recorded net loss of approximately
HK$149.1 million for the Year, which increased as compared to the
net loss of approximately HK$88.1 million recorded in Year 2022.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 30 September 2023, the Group held assets of
approximately HK$378.6 million (2022: HK$511.7 million), including
cash and cash equivalents of HK$33.1 million (2022: HK$16.7
million). The Group’s current ratio (as defined by current assets/
current liabilities) decreased from 15.0 as at 30 September 2022 to
6.5 as at 30 September 2023, which was maintained at a healthy
level. The Board believes that the Group has sufficient resources to
satisfy its working capital requirement.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio (defined as total interest-bearing liabilities/
total equity) was 17.2% (2022: 8.1%), which was considered by the
Board at a low level.

Capital Structure
During the year ended 30 September 2023, the share capital of
the Company remained unchanged at 420,128,249 shares.
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E318 492,100,000 T R T - —FF  KREFESE
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fib E W R IE 2 T HAE B A5 18 (F0BR B E1) 493,300,000

BT e
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Y EMEFKRE RAWD EYRFIERREFEENGES
% ANEER AT RIS E BT EE49149,100,0005 7T -
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F 3G A0 o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENwR DM

The Group is principally engaged in listed investments in Hong
Kong and in unlisted equity and debt securities. The Board has
been actively seeking fund raising opportunities to strengthen the
Company’s financial position.

On 7 September 2022, entered into another placing agreement
(the “CB Placing Agreement”) with China Prospect Securities
Limited (the “CB Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to issue and the CB Placing Agent has
conditionally agreed to procure, on a best effort basis, not less
than six placees to subscribe for the convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of up to HK$21.0 million (the “CB
Placing”). The CB Placing was completed on 26 September
2022 and net proceeds (“Net Proceeds from the CB Placing”) of
approximately HK$20.5 million was raised.

The Net Proceeds from the CB Placing were intended to
be used for the general working capital of the Group and for
future investments pursuant to the investment objectives of the
Company. The aggregate gross proceeds from the CB Placing
was approximately HK$21.0 million and the aggregate net
proceeds from the CB Placing, after deduction of expenses, were
approximately HK$20.5 million, representing a net issue price of
approximately HK$0.244 per the new share of the Company as
if the conversion rights attaching to the convertible bonds are
exercised.

The conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) of the convertible
bonds of HK$0.25 represent (i) a premium of approximately 19.0%
to the closing price of HK$0.21 per share (the “Share(s)”) of the
Company as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the CB
Placing Agreement; and (ii) a premium of approximately 16.1%
to the average closing price of HK$0.2154 per Share as quoted
on the Stock Exchange for the last five trading days immediately
before the date of the CB Placing Agreement. The Conversion
Price were determined after arm’s length negotiations between
the Company and the CB Placing Agent after considering the
then market sentiment, and the market prices and performance
of the Shares, and the Group’s financial position. In case of full
conversion of the convertible bonds, 84,000,000 new Shares of
aggregate nominal value of HK$21,000,000 will be issued and
allotted.
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The Net Proceeds from the CB Placing were fully utilised as
intended during the year ended 30 September 2023.

None of the convertible bonds were converted as of 30
September 2023.

The Group had margin payables and overdrafts totalling
approximately HK$36.6 million as at 30 September 2023 which
bear interest rates ranged from 8% to 20.25% (2022: 8% to 16.0%)
per annum. The margin payables and overdrafts are in Hong Kong
Dollars, and secured by listed investments of the Group, repayable
on demand and are guaranteed by the Company on behalf of
subsidiaries. In view of such immaterial amount of the margin
payables and overdrafts in Hong Kong Dollars as compared to the
Group’s listed stocks of approximately HK$179.8 million as at 30
September 2023, the Company considers the currency and interest
rate risks exposure of its debt and obligation are manageable.

Significant Investments

Investments with fair value/market value not less than 5%
of the Group’s total asset value are significant investments of
the Group, which are included in the Group’s bonds investments
and listed equity investments as detailed in notes 17 and 16 to
the consolidated financial statements of this report, respectively.
Set out below are further information of the Group’s significant
investments.
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Percentage
of fair value/
carrying value

of significant Unrealised
Fair value/ investments to Realised loss (loss)/gain Bond coupons
Carrying value the Company’s recognised recognised received
of significant total assets during the  during the year  during the year
investments as as at year ended ended ended
at 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
R-—E=-=
ABA=+8> BE-®=-=
EARE EAREZ HE-E-Z=F AR=tH HEZEZZ=H
R-ZEZ= ARE/REE hB=+H LEEERIMN hB=+H
AB=+EH HEADEEE EEERRH AEE LFEERIN
AfE/REE BENEIL EERER (B#]) i BHEER
HK$’ million HK$’ million HK$’ million HK$’ million
BERATL BEAT BEAET BEET
Equity investment in 23.7 6.3% 1.7) (31.6) N/A
WLS Holdings Limited N iE A
RERZERERQANERERE
Equity investment in Fullsun 21.3 5.6% - 15.8 N/A
International Holdings Group i A
Co., Limited
RiERBEREREEAR A B
RiERE
Bonds investment in 59.9 15.8% - - 4.3
Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited
REBEBERAANERKE
Bonds investment in 42.2 11.1% - - 3.6
Hao Wen Holdings Limited
REEXIERER R AINERKRE
Bonds investment in Luxxu 225 5.9% - - 1.5

Group Limited
RESEEERAFTNESFRKRE
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Equity Investment — WLS Holdings Limited (“WLS”)
(stock code: 8021)

The Group held approximately 607.8 million shares of WLS
with market value of approximately HK$23.7 million as at 30
September 2023.

WLS is a company incorporated in Cayman Islands with limit
liability. WLS is principally engaged in the scaffolding and fitting out
services and other auxiliary services for construction and buildings
work, and money lending business. For the year ended 30 April
2023, the audited consolidated loss attributable to owners of WLS
was approximately HK$112.4 million, and the unaudited net loss
attributable to owners of WLS of approximately HK$11.7 million
was recorded in the six months ended 31 October 2023.

As WLS is one of the leading scaffolding sub-contractors in the
industry, the management of WLS are confident about securing
more contracts which based on the multi-pronged strategy adopted
by Hong Kong government to maintain a steady and sustainable
land supply with the aim to meet the continuing housing needs.
The Company believes the WLS’s business strategy is in line with
the overall direction of the Hong Kong government’s strategic
development plans for property construction, infrastructure
investment and financial market development, and considerable
amount of profit will be generated in medium to long terms.

Equity Investment — Fullsun International Holdings
Group Co., Limited (“Fullsun”) (stock code: 627)

The Group held approximately 42.6 million shares of Fullsun
with market value of approximately HK$21.3 million as at 30
September 2023.

Fullsun is a company incorporated in Bermuda with limit
liability. Fullsun is principally engaged in property development
and property investment businesses in China. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the audited consolidated loss attributable
to owners of Fullsun was approximately RMB663.6 million,
and the unaudited net loss attributable to owners of Fullsun of
approximately RMB256.8 million was recorded in the six months
ended 30 June 2023.
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Fullsun’s interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2023
stated that according to the data released by the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, China’s gross domestic product reached
RMB59.3 trillion in the first half of 2023, representing an increase
of 5.5% as compared with the same period in the previous year.
The China’s government continues to implement the spirit of
the 20th National Congress of the Communist Party of China to
accelerate the construction of a modernised and strong agricultural
country. It is of utmost importance to develop and accelerate the
modernisation of agricultural and rural areas to ensure the market
stability of food and agricultural products towards a post-COVID
19 economic rebound. In view of this, Fullsun will consider starting
the trading business including but not limited to construction
material, food and health related products in China. Outside China,
according to certain recent research reports, business activities
and markets in Europe and Asia countries have recovered quickly
since the relaxation of the border measures attracting international
corporations to look for investment opportunities. Fullsun will
also consider diversifying its investment portfolio outside China
including but not limited to France, Japan, Malaysia, other European
and Asian countries as well.

The Company agree the viewpoints of the management of
Fullsun and believe that considerable amount of profit will be
generated from investment in Fullsun in long terms. Unrealised gain
of approximately HK$15.8 million was recorded in the Company’s
books during the Year.

Bonds Investment — Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited
(“Gold Medal”)

Gold Medal is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and principally engaged in money lending business.
It is a wholly owned subsidiary of WLS, the guarantor of the bonds,
which is listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8021).
Based on WLS’ interim report for the six months ended 31 October
2023, its net asset value was approximately HK$383.9 million, and
its current assets and total liabilities as at 31 October 2023 were
approximately HK$565.6 million and HK$194.0 million respectively.
The current assets can fully cover its total liabilities. Accordingly,
the Company considers that there is no signal of default of bonds
issued by Gold Medal to the Group.
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Bonds Investment—Hao Wen Holdings Limited (“Hao
Wen”) (stock code: 8019)

Hao Wen is a company incorporated in Cayman Islands
with limited liability. Hao Wen and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in money lending, manufacturing of biomass fuel product
and trading of electronic parts. It is listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8019). Based on Hao Wen’s interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2023, its net asset
value was approximately RMB308.8 million, its current assets
were approximately RMB255.0 million and total liabilities were
approximately RMB72.8 million. In view of Hao Wen’s strong liquid
assets and limited liabilities, the Company considers that Hao Wen
has sufficient financial resources to meet its ongoing operation,
there is no signal of default of bonds issued by Hao Wen to the
Group.

Bonds Investment—Luxxu Group Limited (“Luxxu”)
(stock code: 1327)

Luxxu is a company incorporated in Cayman lIslands with
limited liability. Luxxu and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacturing, trading and retailing business of watches. It is
listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1327).
Based on Luxxu’s interim report for the six months ended 30 June
2023, its net asset value was approximately RMB100.7 million,
its current assets were approximately RMB113.5 million and total
liabilities were approximately RMB30.2 million. In view of Luxxu’s
strong liquid assets and limited liabilities, the Company considers
that Luxxu has sufficient financial resources to meet its ongoing
operation, there is no signal of default of bonds issued by Luxxu to
the Group.

Credit Risk Assessment on Bonds Investment and
Amounts Receivables from Disposal of Investments

During the Year, the Group has made expected credit loss
(“ECL") on bonds investment of approximately HK$9.6 million
and that on amounts receivables from disposal of investments of
HK$3.3 million.

In relation to the bonds investment, it is the current practice
of the Board to review the financial situation of the bond-issuers
at least semi-annually. For any acquisition or disposal of bonds,
the Board would seek the advice of the Company’s investment
manager before making investment and divestment decisions. In
determining the amount of ECL provision, the Company engaged
an independent valuer to evaluate the ECL on the bonds held by
the Group.
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In relation to the receivables from disposal of unlisted
investments, it is the current practice of the Board to review the
financial situation of the debtors at least semi-annually. For any
extension of the repayment, the Board would review the financial
situation of the debtors on a stand-alone basis, and request
interest on receivables as compensation. In determining the
amount of ECL provision, the Company engaged an independent
valuer to evaluate the ECL on these receivables.

Dividend Policy

It is the Board’s intention to distribute any excess balance by
way of dividend to the extent permitted by law, the Memorandum
and the Articles. Dividends will only be paid to the extent that they
are covered by net income received from underlying investments.
Distribution will be made annually after the annual accounts of the
Company are approved by the shareholders but interim distribution
may be made from time to time to shareholders as appear to the
Board to be justified by the position of the Company. Distributions
will be made in Hong Kong dollars.

As the Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio, the declaration of future dividends will be subject
to the decision by the Board and will depend on, among other
things, the earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and
availability, the availability of funds to meet the financial covenants
of the Group’s bank loans (if applicable) and any other factors that
our Directors may consider relevant.

Capital Commitment and Operating Lease Commitment
As at 30 September 2023, the Group had no material
commitment.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 30 September 2023, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Charge of Assets

As at 30 September 2023, the Group had pledged listed stocks
of approximately HK$105.9 million to secure the margin payables
and overdraft.
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Foreign Currency Fluctuation

The Group’s exposures to foreign currencies mainly arises
from its investments in companies located in the PRC, which
are financed internally. In order to mitigate the potential impact
of currency fluctuations, the Group closely monitors its foreign
currency exposures and will use suitable hedging instruments
against significant foreign currency exposures, where necessary.
No foreign currency hedge contract was entered into by the Group
during the Year. As at 30 September 2023, the Group had no
outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts (30 September 2022:
Nil).

Human Resources

As at 30 September 2023, the Group had 20 employees
including the Directors. Total staff costs excluding Directors’
remuneration amounted to approximately HK$3.2 million.
They perform clerical, research, business development and
administrative functions for the Group. The Group’s remuneration
policies are in line with the prevailing market practice and the staff
remuneration is determined on the basis of the performance and
experience of individual employees.

Material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

During the Year, the Company does not have any significant
acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.
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The Board is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
with emphasis on transparency, independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in

corporate governance.

The Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
in its Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) sets out two levels of corporate
governance practices, namely, mandatory CG Code provisions that
a listed company must comply with or explain its non-compliance,
and recommended best practices that listed companies are
encouraged to comply with but need not disclose in the case of
non-compliance. The Company is in compliance with the mandatory
CG Code provisions, save for the deviations discussed below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

The Board comprises two Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors during the year ended
30 September 2023 (the “Year” or “Fiscal Year 2022/23”). The
Board has appointed Committees to oversee different areas of
the Company’s affairs. The composition of the Board and the
Committees are given below and their respective responsibilities
are discussed in this report.

The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and
General Meetings attended by each Director during the Year is set
out in the following table. Figure in brackets indicates maximum
number of meetings in the period in which the individual was a
Board Member or Committee Member (as the case may be).
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Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Investment
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Exe ENZEEE® HMZEE REZEE REZEE
Name of Director EEf? e L L S EE BREAE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Kong Fanpeng AAEEE 10/(10)  NAZTEH NIA FiE N/A FiE 4/(4) 0/(1)
Mr.Chan Cheong Yee REZLAE 10/(10) NIA TiE A N/A TiE R NA FiE A 4/(4) 11(1)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUYTES
Mr. Lee Ming Gin ZHERE 8/(9) 2/(3) 0/(1) 0/(1) N/A TER 0/(1)
Ms. Lai Fun Yin REELT 9/(9) 3/(3) 11(1) 11 NATER 11(1)
Mr. Cheung Wai Kin REREE 9/(9) 31(3) 11(1) 1) NATESR 0/(1)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. Each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing their
independence from the Company in accordance with the guidelines
on director independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the
Company considers all such Directors to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this report are set out on pages 7 to 8 of this annual report.
Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge
and expertise of the Directors, the Board believes that it is
appropriately structured to provide sufficient checks and balances
to protect the interests of the Group and the shareholders. The
Board will review its composition regularly to ensure that it has the
appropriate balance of expertise, skills and experience to continue
to effectively oversee the business of the Company.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
with the reference to their respective duties and responsibility with
the Company, the Company’s performance and current market
situation. Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Year are
disclosed in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

A Director may be appointed either by the shareholders in
a general meeting or by the Board on recommendation of the
Nomination Committee. The Board takes into account criteria
such as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when
considering a new appointment.
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In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
(“Articles”), all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meetings of the Company. New
Directors appointed by the Board during the Year, if any, are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first
annual general meeting immediately following their appointments.
Further, at each annual general meeting, not less than one-third
of the Directors or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third are required to
retire from office.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CG Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. Decisions of the Company are
made collectively by the executive Directors. The Board believes
that this arrangement enables the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s
objectives efficiently and effectively in response to the changing
environment. The Board also believes that the Company already
has a strong corporate governance structure in place to ensure
effective oversight of management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all
Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend external forum
or training courses on relevant topics which may count towards
Continuous Professional Development training.

Pursuant to CG Code C.1.4, Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. During the Year, all
Directors have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities either by attending training courses or by
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Yuet Ching has been the Company Secretary of
the Company since July 2017. Ms. Chan is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She reports to the
Executive Directors and assists the Board in functioning effectively
and efficiently. During the Year, Ms. Chan undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to update her skill and knowledge.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (“Audit Committee”) of the Board
comprises all three independent non-executive Directors and is
currently chaired by Mr. Cheung Wai Kin, who possesses extensive
financial and accounting experience in commercial sectors. It is
responsible for appointment of external auditors, review of the
Group’s financial information and oversight of the Group’s financial
reporting system and risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing
the interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending
them to the Board for approval. The results for the Year has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee. It meets regularly to review
financial reporting, risk management and internal control matters
and to this end has unrestricted access to personnel, records and
external auditors and senior management.

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in CG
Code Provisions. In the Fiscal Year 2022/23, the Audit Committee
held three meetings. At the meetings, it reviewed the final results
and accounts for the year ended 30 September 2023, and the
interim results and accounts for the six months ended 31 March
2023 and financial reporting system, and risk management and
internal control systems. It also reviewed the Company’s progress
in implementing the corporate governance requirements as set out
in the CG Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee, comprises all three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is responsible for reviewing and
determining the compensation and benefits of the Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Independent Non-executive Director Mr. Lee Ming Gin. The
Remuneration Committee has specific written terms of reference
which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in CG
Code Provisions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee, comprises all three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Lee Ming Gin. The
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board; identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on selection of
individual nominated for directorships; making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and
the Chief Executive; and determining the policy for nomination of
directors. The Nomination Committee has specific written terms
of reference which are of no less exacting terms than those
stipulated in CG Code Provisions.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors
and measureable objectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural background, educational background, skills, knowledge
and professional experience. All Board appointments will be based
on merit, and candidates will be measured against objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The Nomination Committee has the delegated responsibilities to
monitor the implementation and review the board diversity policy
and report to the Board.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee, which comprises all Executive
Directors, is responsible for formulating investment policies and
reviewing and determining the investment portfolio of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the CG Code provision A.2.1.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, continuous professional development of
Directors, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgments
and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board, recognising its overall responsibility in ensuring the
systems of risk management and internal controls of the Group
and for reviewing its effectiveness, is committed to implementing
effective and sound systems to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the assets of the Group. These risk management
and internal control systems are designed to manage risks rather
than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objective, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss; and to ensure the reliability of
financial information for both internal use and external publication
and to provide reasonable assurance against material statement or
loss and achievement of the Group’s objective.
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Main features of the risk management and internal control
systems

To ensure the efficient and effective operation of the business
and operations, relevant internal control procedures have been set
up for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
controlling over capital expenditure, maintaining proper accounting
records and ensuring the reliability of financial information used
for business and publication. These procedures are monitored and
reviewed from time to time and updated where necessary.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
» lIdentifies risks that may potentially affect the key processes
of the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment
+ Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

» Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Risk Response
* Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk

assessment; and

* Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

* Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

* Revises the risk management strategies and internal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation;

and

* Report the results of risk monitoring to the management
and the Board regularly.
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The management has carried out periodic review of the
procedures and the implementation of the risk management and
internal control (“RM and IC”) systems, including areas covered
accounting, business and legal compliance.

To further strengthen the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, the Company has engaged independent
professional adviser (the “System Adviser”) to carry out the internal
audit functions and also perform independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s RM and IC systems.
The System Adviser has conducted an annual review of and made
recommendations to improve the effectiveness of the Group’s RM
and IC systems (the “RM and IC Review”).

During the year ended 30 September 2023, the Audit
Committee, with the assistance of the System Adviser, reviewed
the efficiency and effectiveness of the Group’s RM and IC Systems
in various aspects. The System Adviser executed the RM and IC
Review which involves the following tasks:

1. Conducting interviews with relevant management and staff
members relating to the risk management and internal
controls

2. Conducting walk-through relating to the RM and IC Review

3. Reviewing relevant documentation relating to the RM and
IC Review

4. ldentifying significant deficiencies in the design of the risk
management and internal controls

5. Communicate the significant findings with the management
so as to confirm the factual accuracy of the findings
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After the RM and IC Review, the management provided an
action plan so as to mitigate those identified deficiencies in a
timely manner. All internal control findings would be followed up
closely to ensure that the action plan is implemented accordingly.

During the year ended 30 September 2023, the Board was
satisfied that the Group’s RM and IC processes are adequate to
meet the needs of the Group in its current business environment
and that nothing has come to its attention to cause the Board to
believe the Group’s RM and IC systems are inadequate. Moreover,
the existing RM and IC systems are effective and adequate, and
will continue to be reviewed, added on or updated to provide for
changes in the operating environment.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 September 2023, the remuneration paid
and payable to D & PARTNERS CPA LIMITED was HK$595,000 for
audit services (Year ended 30 September 2022: HK$545,000) and
HK$5,000 for non-audit services (Year ended 30 September 2022:
HK$5,000).

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’'s
Report” on pages 72 to 78.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company
has made specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the Year and they all
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective
communications with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to
enhance such communications, the Company provides information
relating to the Company and its business in its interim and annual
reports.

The Company regards its annual general meetings as an
opportunity for direct communications between the Board and
its shareholders. All Directors, senior management and external
auditors make an effort to attend the annual general meetings to
address shareholders’ queries. The Company also responds to
requests for information and queries from the shareholders and
investors and welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the

Board or management direct.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
A. Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary

General Meeting

Extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board of Directors or the Secretary of the Company (Room 2302,
23/F, New World Tower I, 18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong) for
the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene such meeting, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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B. Procedures for Shareholders to Nominate a Director

A notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company and a notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected together with his/her
particulars (such as qualifications and experience) and information
as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited shall be lodged at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business (Room 2302, 23/F, New World Tower I,
18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong) or at its share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited (Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong). The period for lodgment of the
notices required will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting, and the minimum length of the period during
which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7
days.
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The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to
present the annual report and the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 30 September 2023 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 79, 165 to 166 and 80
to 81, respectively. The Directors do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the Period.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of movements in share capital and the reserves of the
Company during the Year are set out in notes 21 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Please refer to note 32(iii) to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Fair review of the Company’s business and likely future
development

Please refer to “Executive Directors’ Statement” on pages 4 to 6.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Please refer to notes 4 and 29 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Environmental Protection

The Group has taken an initiative to promote employees’
awareness of environmental protection and the need to achieve
efficient utilisation of resources through launching paper recycling
and setting auto power saving mode on the Company’s computers

in offices.

Compliance with laws and regulations

In order to comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Group emphasises the importance of adhering to anti-
corruption practices for all employees. The Group regards honesty,
integrity and fair play as its core values that must be upheld by
all employees of the Group at all times. As such, the Board has
instructed the Group’s employees are not allowed to solicit or
accept any advantage for themselves or others, from any person,
company or organisations having business dealings with the Group.

Company’s key relationships with its employees

The Group has provided employees with opportunities
to advance their career. The Group’s policy is to encourage
employees to take part in professional examinations, seminars and
training courses related to their roles and duties through course
fee subsidies and leave grants. Competitive remuneration is also
offered to employees and their performance is reviewed on an
annual basis reflecting each employee’s contributions to the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate to
conform with the Period’s presentation, is set out on page 168.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The existing share option scheme of the Company was
approved and adopted by shareholders’ resolution at the annual
general meeting held on 10 December 2013 (the “Option Scheme”),
unless otherwise cancelled or amended subject to resolution
passed at general meeting of the Company the Option Scheme
will remain in force for ten years from 10 December 2013. As at
30 September 2023, the remaining life of the Option Scheme was
approximately 3 months.

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisors,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of the Group and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

Eligible participants (the “Participants”) of the Option Scheme
include any employee (full-time or part-time), director, consultant
or advisor of any member of the Group, or any substantial
shareholder of any member of the Group, or any distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service
provider of any member of the Group, or any company wholly
owned by one or more persons belonging to any of the above
classes.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be,
the independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the
basis of the participant’s contribution or potential contribution to
the development and growth of the Group.

Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company must
not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company as at the date of
the shareholders’ approval of the option limit; and (ii) the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each Participant under the Option Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any shares of the Company
subject to options granted during such period under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company) exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue for any time being.
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Any grant of options to any directors, chief executive or
substantive shareholders (as such terms as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company, or any of their respective associates
under the Option Scheme or any other share option scheme of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject to the
prior approval of the independent non-executive directors or
shareholders of the Company as the case may be. Without prior
separate approval from the Company’s shareholders, the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant shall
not (i) exceed 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of such grant; and (ii) have an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, in excess of HK$5 million.

Under the Option Scheme, the options granted may be
accepted by the participants concerned for a period of twenty-
one days from the date of such offer. An option shall be regarded
as having been accepted when the Company receives from the
Participant the duplicate of the offer letter duly signed by the
Participant together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1 as consideration for the grant of option. Options may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme at
any time not exceeding a period of ten years from the date on
which the share option is granted. The subscription price for the
shares on the exercise of an option under the Option Scheme shall
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the
Company’s share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.
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Details of the options granted to the Grantees under the Option BEZAEBRTERAZCEREFBRNRAEE
Scheme and movements in such holdings during the Year were as NEBREEZHNT
follows:
Number of Number of
Number of Number of Number of options options held
options held options options cancelled/ as at
Exercise asat  granted during exercised during lapsed during 30 September
Category Date of Grant Price Option Period 1 October 2022 the Year the Year the Year 2023
R-B-Z% R-B-=%
tHA-H AEEREHY AFEERTRE AFERE$ES HLASTEME
55 REBH TRE BREAR FisBREHA ZEREHE ZEBRESE X¥MzBREHEA BREZE
Directors
Bz
Mr. Kong Fanpeng 16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from
date of grant 3,430,000 - - - 3,430,000
HLABE R4 ZZZ-FZA+tRA 0258 BERLBER=F
9 March 2022 HK$0.251 Three years from
date of grant 4,200,000 - - - 4,200,000
—E-Z5=ANRA 0.25178 7T BRI ASE=F
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee 16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from
date of grant 3,430,000 - - - 3,430,000
REZELE ZZZ-FZATRE 0258 BRI BHE=F
9 March 2022 HK$0.251 Three years from
date of grant 4,200,000 - - - 4,200,000
—T--4%=ANR 0.2518 7T BRLBHE=F
Employees 16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from
date of grant 20,580,000 - - - 20,580,000
&& ZZZ-EZATRE 02581 ERHBBE=F
16 February 2022 HK$0.275 Three years from
date of grant 25,200,000 - - - 25,200,000
ZZZZEZRTRE 021581 ERHBBE=F
Total
@t 61,040,000 - - - 61,040,000
The outstanding 61,040,000 share options as at 1 October BT -+ BRk-ZZBE-_=ZFhLA=+

2022 and 30 September 2023 were with immediate vesting period.

The total number of share options available for grant under
the scheme mandate at 1 October 2022 and 30 September 2023
were 42,012,824 share options. The number of shares that may
be issued in respect of the share options granted under the Option
Scheme during the year ended 30 September 2023 divided by the
weighted average number of shares in issue for the same year is
approximately 10.0%.

As at 30 September 2023, 42,012,824 share options remained
ungranted which represent approximately 10.0% of the issued
share capital of the Company. The Option Scheme lapsed on 10
December 2023, and no share options were granted during the
period from 1 October 2023 to 9 December 2023. As such, no
share options could be granted as at the date of this report.

B HAR1TEH61,040,00010 BE AR HES L BN SR -
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BRE-BE-_T-_=FNA=-THLEFE REE
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BITRD B IN#EF I EE £9510.0% ©

RZZTZ=FNA=+H" 42,012,824 BB
REFEE  HEARAREEHTRAE10.0% © BB E
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DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Kong Fanpeng
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Ming Gin

Ms. Lai Fun Yin

Mr. Cheung Wai Kin

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Chan Cheong
Yee and Mr. Lee Ming Gin shall retire in accordance with Article
85(1). Both of them being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election thereat.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 30 September 2023, none of the Directors have entered
into any service agreement with any member of the Group
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Neither transaction, arrangement nor contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, existed at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors and their
respective associates had any interest in a business which causes
or may cause a significant competition with the business of the
Group and any other conflict of interests which any such person
has or may have with the Group.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance
Policy for indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such policy
are reviewed annually by the Company.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is to
ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they receive
appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of performance.

Details of the Director’'s emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2023
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in “SHARE OPTIONS” in the Report of
Directors and 2,750,000 shares of the Company held by Mr.
Kong Fanpeng, as at 30 September 2023, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had or were deemed to
have any Discloseable Interests or Short Position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules
(collectively “Discloseable Interests or Short Positions”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 September 2023, there was no person who had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director, the chief executive or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; nor was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

On 30 November 2020, the Company entered into an
investment management agreement to appoint Evergrande
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited (‘ESL”) as its investment
manager for an initial terms of three years commencing from 8
December 2020. The Company has to pay ESL monthly investment
management fee of HK$50,000.

Save as disclosed above, no other material contract (not being
contract entered into in the ordinary course of business) was
entered into by any member of the Group during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material transactions with its related
parties during the Year.

The Directors conducted review of the related party
transactions of the Group during the Year and were not aware
any transaction requiring disclosure of connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirmed that at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

D & PARTNERS CPA LIMITED retires and, being eligible, offers
itself for reappointment. A resolution for reappointment of D &
PARTNERS CPA LIMITED as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 December 2023
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ABOUT THE GROUP

Capital VC Limited (“Capital VC” or the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a Cayman lIslands-based
company with limited liability. Its shares are publicly listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The primary focus of the Group lies in investing in both listed
and unlisted securities, predominantly within Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). As of 30 September
2023, the core portfolio of the Group primarily consists of small
to medium-sized listed companies. It upholds a diverse investment
portfolio encompassing various business sectors, including but
not restricted to finance, consumer goods and services, media,
manufacturing, construction and more.

Mission
To achieve medium-term or long-term capital appreciation.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The purpose of the Environmental, Social and Governance
(the “ESG”) Report (the “ESG Report”) is to showcase the Group’s
initiatives in striving for sustainable growth throughout the period
spanning from 1 October 2022 to 30 September 2023 (the
“Year”). It provides an overview of the Group’s ESG management
approach, governance structure as well as sustainability initiatives
and performance and its investments in the listed and unlisted
securities business operating in Hong Kong.

The Group predominantly follows the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) outlined in
Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its foundation. The
objective is to create a robust ESG framework. The sustainability
disclosure and contents of this Report adhere to the principles of

“Materiality”, “Quantitativeness”, “Consistency” and “Balance” as
defined in the ESG Guide.
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Reporting Principles
Materiality

This report is structured based on the materiality of respective
issues, resulting from materiality assessments conducted annually.
The results of the materiality assessment were reviewed and
confirmed by the Board and senior management. This Report
focuses on addressing topics that hold relevance and importance
to both the Group’s operations and its stakeholders.

Consistency

Unless specified otherwise, the disclosure and statistical
methodologies used in this report maintain consistency with the
preceding financial year, ensuring meaningful comparisons. Any
alterations that might impact comparisons with previous reports
will be accompanied by explanatory notes in the relevant section
by the Group.

Quantitativeness

The preparation of this report aligns with the ESG Reporting
Guide, presenting key performance indicators (“KPIs”) in a
quantitative format. Where necessary, it includes details about
standards, methodologies, assumptions, calculation references and
sources of key conversion factors utilized for the KPlIs.

Balance

This report presents an unbiased overview of the Group’s ESG
performance with achievements and performances disclosed. The
Group engages an external sustainability consultant to ensure an
impartial presentation of our performances in the preparation of
the Report.

The Report is accessible in Chinese and English and
has been uploaded on both the Stock Exchange’s website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and Capital VC's official website
(www.capital-vc.com). For details about the Group’s corporate
governance, please consult the Corporate Governance Report in
the Annual Report.

APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT

As a responsible corporate entity, the Group is dedicated to
generating enduring value for stakeholders by integrating ESG
principles into its operations, aspiring to impact its environment
and the broader community positively. To be accountable to
all stakeholders, the Group strives to reduce its environmental
footprint, prioritize employee well-being and increase its
contributions to the community.
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BOARD STATEMENT ON ESG GOVERNANCE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Capital
VC is dedicated to integrating an ESG mindset into business
operations. They bear complete responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability, involving the development of strategies, supervision
of ESG-related risks and opportunities and the approval of the
ESG Report. Additionally, the Board is mandated to stay updated
on and adhere to the most recent regulatory demands before
endorsing the ESG Report.

The Board holds the view that managing ESG-related risks
and opportunities is integral to the Group’s long-term operational
efficiency and effectiveness. The risk management and internal
control systems ensure the accuracy, reliability and timeliness of
the data presented, along with sustainable development measures.
Additionally, the Board will consistently assess the effectiveness
of these systems, ensuring they encompass significant control
measures concerning material ESG issues.

To uphold robust ESG governance, the Board entrusts the
senior management with the responsibility for devising and day-to-
day executing ESG policies and measures. The senior management
plays a pivotal role in assisting the Board regarding ESG matters
and supervising the implementation of the Group’s ESG initiatives.
This includes reviewing pertinent policies and practices and
offering recommendations on aspects related to the Group’s ESG
governance.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group holds the belief that comprehending stakeholder
perspectives forms a strong foundation for its sustained growth
and success. It establishes various avenues to engage with a wide
range of stakeholders, allowing them to share their opinions on its
sustainability performance and future strategies. To foster mutual
trust and respect, the Group is dedicated to maintaining consistent
communication channels — both formal and informal — with
stakeholders. This commitment aims to enhance the Group’s ability
to tailor business strategies in response to stakeholder needs
and expectations, anticipate risks and fortify crucial relationships.
Information gathered through diverse communication processes
forms the fundamental basis for structuring this Report.

Engaging with stakeholders is central to the Group’s
sustainability efforts. It has recognized employees, business
partners, shareholders, suppliers, government and the wider
community as its primary stakeholder groups. The Group
acknowledges the importance of establishing effective online and
offline communication channels, ensuring stakeholders receive
timely updates on the Group’s strategic planning and performance.
This fosters an ongoing communication mechanism. Furthermore,
the Group actively seeks input from stakeholders, considering their
recommendations and propositions to align its business practices
with stakeholder expectations.
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The pertinent stakeholder groups encompass shareholders,
government and regulatory bodies, employees, customers,
suppliers, society and the general public. The Group engages with
these stakeholders through diverse channels to understand their

expectations and gather relevant feedback, as outlined below:

Stakeholders
BioE

Shareholders

Government and regulatory bodies

BT R EE®E

Employees

=]

Customers

Suppliers

HER

Society and the public

al= SN

Requirement and Expectation

FREHE

* Financial results
« Corporate transparency
* Sound risk control

< BHBFREA
- BEERE
< EERERE

* Compliance with laws and regulations
* Relevant conferences
o BPERRIER

- HEgZ

* Career development platform

« Salary and benefits

« Safe working environment

e provision of employee training and
safety awareness enhancement

- BETETA

. FEREF

o ZEHIERE

- RHtEESIRESLZ2EM

» Protection of customer rights and
interests

* Customer information security

- REZFPENRER

- BPERZZ

* Integrity cooperation

* Business ethics and credibility
. HEAEF

- BEERIMEE

* Environmental protection
*  Employment opportunities

< RERE

. BLEKE

IR E BB R  BRREE R A
BF BEENREERAR AREERSERE
BESHPERS UTRESZHERABRE.
W

Communication and Response

BEREDE

* Increase of profitability

* Regular information disclosure

+ Optimization of risk management and
internal control

- RE&EFEED

- THESKRE

o BAcEREE R KRR

+ Compliance operation
* Direct communication
. ARKE

- BHEESB

* Promotion mechanism

+ Competitive salary and employee
benefits

* Employee training

- BT
- ABFONFEREEREF
- REHEI

+ Compliance marketing
» Customer privacy protection

. AR
. BERLBRE

* Responsible supply chain
* Performance contract

- BREARHERE

- BY

« Adoption of energy-saving equipment

* Implementation of environmental
protection measures

* To provide employment opportunities

- EAEERE

s MOTRERERE

. RMMEKE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group has embraced the principle of materiality in its
ESG reporting, aiming to comprehend the crucial ESG issues
vital to its business. During the Year, the Company conducted
its annual materiality assessment exercise. The primary goal of
this assessment was to assess ESG topics that hold significance
and relevance to the Group’s operations. This process involved
engaging in interviews and/or surveys with both internal and
external stakeholders to discern the most substantial environmental
and social impacts on its business. To identify potential material
topics for disclosure in the ESG Report, the Group referred to the
ESG Guide and established possible topics for assessment.

According to the results of the materiality assessment, the
items below demonstrated the ESG topics with high materiality to
the Group, including:

Aspects Material ESG Issues
B. Social Aspect
B1. Employment * Employee welfare

¢ Inclusion and equal
opportunities
« Talent attraction and retention

B2. Health and Safety * Occupational health and safety
B4. Labour Standards * Prevention of child and forced
labour

B6. Product Responsibility ¢ Economic value generated
* Protection of intellectual
property rights
* Protection of customer privacy
B7. Anti-corruption « Corporate governance
* Anti-corruption
B8. Community Investment ¢« Community investment

A4 EEEIBAER/AT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
Emissions

The Group acknowledges the significance of striking a balance
between economic progress and environmental preservation,
especially given the escalating severity of environmental and
climate-related challenges in recent years.

To effectively comply with government environmental policies,
the Group takes proactive steps in assuming responsibility for
environmental governance. Continuously enhancing emission and
resource management, the Group embraces principles of circular
economy and ecological preservation. This commitment translates
our aspiration for a healthier environment into tangible initiatives,
aiming for a harmonious balance between economic growth and
environmental welfare.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

Throughout the year, the Group has no knowledge of any
substantial breaches of environmental protection laws and
regulations significantly affecting the Group, particularly concerning
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land and the creation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.
The Group maintains strict adherence to environmental laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC, encompassing, among
others:

* Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311 of the Laws of
Hong Kong);

* Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Laws of Hong
Kong); and

* Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Cap. 499 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

No fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with

relevant laws and regulations had been reported in the Year.
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Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The primary operations of the Group do not directly result

in substantial air or greenhouse gas emissions. The prevalent

emission stems from daily business activities, mainly the

consumption of purchased electricity and fuel used in motor

vehicles. While the environmental impact remains relatively

modest, the Group endeavors to take proactive steps toward

emission and energy reduction through its established procedures.

Further elaboration on energy management measures is provided

in the subsequent section titled “Energy Management” below.
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Greenhouse gas emissions

BEREBHER

Scope 1 emissions’

1 — P

Scope 2 emissions?

#ES2 — P2

Scope 3 emissions?

I3 — PEae

Total greenhouse gas emissions
R E RPN

Intensity (by employee)
nE(BEREE)

FE R N8 = R B HER

AEENEIEZXEBABERELREERIAE
REFM - AESEREEBEDELNTIESRYE
ERBRMBENE N RERRBABEROMRE - F
EREFEDARYER/ AEERHIRBBRER
FrE 3R 2 B & B BE - BETR B R HE MY T ST BER

IR —EIEE— A e

Fiscal Year

Unit 2022/23

—E-= /==

B BHEFE

tonnes CO,-e 39.4
MR —SLIRE 2

tonnes CO,-e 2.3
WS iRE R

tonnes CO,-e 0.75
WS LR E 2

tonnes CO,-e 42.4
MR —SLIRE 2

tonnes CO,-e/employee 21

MR —S(LIRE S

Scope 1 emission represents the petrol consumption from motor

vehicles.

Scope 2 emission represents the electricity purchased from power

suppliers.

Scope 3 emission represents the paper waste disposed at landfills.
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In addition to greenhouse gas emissions, fuel consumption by
motor vehicles leads to the release of air pollutants like nitrogen
oxides (“NOy”), sulphur oxides (“SOy”) and particulate matter
(“PM”). To mitigate air pollution arising from vehicle use, strict
limitations are imposed, allowing motor vehicles solely for staff
transportation and essential business activities.

These air emissions were not monitored in the Year. However,
the Group has been committed to reducing pollutant and carbon
emissions to mitigate the impact on the environment.

The Group aims to enhance its performance tracking to
establish more precise quantitative environmental objectives and
corresponding measures. This effort is directed toward maintaining
momentum in energy conservation and reducing overall energy

consumption.

Waste Management

In its regular operations, the Group doesn’t produce hazardous
wastes, which include chemical or clinical wastes and hazardous
chemicals. Non-hazardous waste generated primarily involves
general office consumables, deemed immaterial considering
the nature of the business. The Group’s waste categorization
primarily comprises general wastes (akin to household waste)
and recyclable wastes. The Group implements waste reduction

measures, including:

» Utilizing pen refills instead of discarding entire ballpoint
pens to reutilize pen shafts.

» Depositing rechargeable batteries in designated collection
points.

« Engaging a recycling company for toner cartridge recycling
purposes.

» Placing recycling bins to collect used paper items like waste
paper, letters and envelopes.

» Eliminating the use of paper cups and other disposable
utensils as a measure to minimize consumption.

Fom = RPN REREUE R IR KRS
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22 w8
=
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REEYEIE
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Paper usage is crucial for operational activities, particularly in
print publications and notices. To curtail paper usage, the Group
has instituted the following policies:

» Implementing an electronic filing and documentation system.

* Advocating electronic communication and fostering a

“consider before copying” mindset.

» Embracing double-sided printing and photocopying
practices.

» Preferring emails over letters or faxes whenever feasible.

» Electronically receiving incoming faxes via an e-fax system
and resorting to hard copies only when essential.

+ Employing used or recycled paper for internal documents or
drafts.

At present, both hazardous and non-hazardous waste are
deemed inconsequential to the Group, and there hasn’t been an
accumulation of pertinent information. We will consistently assess
and reveal additional information as deemed suitable in the future.

Use of Resources

The Group seizes every chance to motivate its employees
to embrace green initiatives in their daily activities and integrate
environmental sustainability into business operations. Given the
nature of the office’s activities, the primary resources utilized by
the Group comprise electricity, water and paper.
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Energy Management

Given that energy consumption constitutes a significant portion
of the Group’s GHG emissions, several energy-saving initiatives
have been implemented to enhance energy efficiency and curtail
operational energy usage. For instance:

* Implementing natural light and utilizing energy-efficient
lighting wherever viable.

* Turning off unnecessary lights, electrical devices (like
computers and printers) and air conditioners when not in

use.

* Placing computers on sleep mode rather than using a
screen saver.

» Avoiding excessive cooling in offices and setting air
conditioner temperatures to 24 degrees Celsius, if feasible.

* Regularly cleaning air conditioner filters to enhance airflow
efficiency.

* Turning off air conditioning after 7 p.m., even during
overtime, as fewer staff members require it during that
period.

* Limiting the use of motor vehicles by management for
attending business meetings and with important business

partners.

» Shutting off car engines during idling periods.
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Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Direct and indirect energy consumption by type Unit 2022/23 2021/22

—_E2-—— /== —E-—/——F
EEKBEEERERE (RERES) B MHRFE MRFE
Direct energy consumption GJ 749.2 587.1
HERRER =55
Indirect energy consumption MWh 3.7 3.8
el e IR H 7% JK EL I
Total energy consumption MWh-e 211.8 166.8
HeeRERE KEFEE
Intensity (by employee) MWh-e/employee 10.6 8.3
HE (ZEEES) kEREE &S

Water Management

The primary water consumption by the Group stems from toilet
flushing, cleaning and drinking water. The Group operates within
leased office spaces where both water supply and discharge are
managed solely by the respective property management. Providing
specific data on water withdrawal or discharge for individual
occupants isn’t feasible. To minimize unnecessary water usage in
daily operations, the Group promotes practices such as ensuring
tightly closed taps to prevent dripping and prioritizing the use of
effective water-saving products.

Packaging Materials

The Group is not subject to disclosing the total quantity of
packaging materials since it did not utilize any packaging materials
during its operations.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The primary business operations of the Group do not notably
affect the environment or natural resources. Nevertheless, the
Group remains dedicated to sustainability efforts, aiming to
diminish the environmental impact of its operations, specifically
focusing on reducing greenhouse gas emissions and conserving

resources.
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To enhance awareness and induce behavioral shifts, employees
are regularly briefed on the eco-friendly practices embraced by
the Group through routine meetings, emails and distribution of
pertinent materials. The Group strongly encourages all employees
to actively engage in diverse recycling initiatives and limit the
consumption of natural resources. Ongoing efforts are prioritized
to continually decrease emissions and waste, aiming to minimize
the environmental impact and preserve natural resources resulting
from the Group’s activities. As highlighted earlier, the Group has
implemented diverse strategies to safeguard water resources
and curtail waste generation. Moreover, a dedicated commitment
to fostering green office practices and resource conservation
underscores the Group’s contribution to sustainable development.

As outlined earlier, the Group has instituted diverse measures
aimed at preserving water resources and minimizing waste.
Additionally, the Group is committed to promoting eco-friendly office
practices and resource conservation to contribute to sustainable
development.

Climate Change

Climate change and global warming stand as significant
environmental challenges worldwide. Given the Group’s primary
business involvement in investments, climate change doesn’t
directly impact its operations notably. However, the Group may
foresee potential spending increases on cooling in response to
higher future temperatures. Conversely, there could be productivity
losses due to office closures resulting from the heightened
frequency and intensity of extreme weather events, such as
typhoons and heavy rainfall. In response, the Group plans to
reassess its current measures for adverse weather conditions,
prioritizing the safety of its employees.

In its commitment to diminish carbon footprint and emissions,
the Group actively embraced pertinent environmental policies
and implemented office environmental measures detailed in the
ESG Report. Additionally, the Group actively engaged in various
environmental conservation initiatives, including participation
in events like “Earth Hour” and “Green Low Carbon Day,” while
organizing diverse green activities within the workplace. Despite
having minimal impact on the Group’s operations, the Group
remains dedicated to advancing environmental conservation efforts
and heightening employee environmental consciousness. Moving
forward, the Group will persistently monitor energy consumption
intensity across its operations, periodically identifying opportunities
to enhance efficiency and curtail GHG emissions.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS
Employment and Labour Practices
Employment

The Group considers employees as its most valuable
assets and fundamental competitive edge. Its objective is to
offer employees a respectful and equitable work environment,
achieved through a robust human resources management system
that encompasses various facets, including recruitment and
compensation.

The Group ensures fairness and openness in both employee
recruitment and promotions. The selection processes remain
unaffected by various factors such as age, gender, physical or
mental health, marital or family status, race, skin color, nationality,
religion, political views, sexual orientation and other similar
considerations. To foster a fair work environment and prioritize
employee well-being, the Group highly values all employee
opinions, actively incorporating them to enhance workplace
productivity and harmony.

The Group provides competitive remuneration, promotional
prospects, comprehensive compensation and benefit packages to
both attract and retain talented individuals. These remuneration
packages undergo periodic review, considering the Group’s
operational outcomes, individual performances and market
data. The objective is to recognize and incentivize employee
contributions and achievements, supporting their career growth and
progression within the Group.
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As at 30 September 2023, the Group had a total of 20 full- RZZEZ=FNA=1+H AEEXE2052EE
time employees, including the Directors. 15 and 5 employees were B (BIEESE) 158 R5REED IR E S KFEH -
located in Hong Kong and China respectively. The distribution of BARBERNDBENEE N MIAT

workforce classified by different categories was as follows:

Number of Employee by Gender Number of Employee by Age Group
RUERIED HNEEAH RERARNEDNEEAK

0%

mMale mFemale m <30 m 30-50 = >50
St it
Number of Employee by Number of Employee by
Employment Category Geographical Region
REBENEINESAR RiBEDNES AR

0%

® Management m Middle level = Junior level mHong Kong  mChina
BEE )= 2E &8 hE
Compliance with relevant laws and regulations EBTFIEEZEREM
The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with RAFE AEBWTNEHEARNEEERERENER

the Employment Ordinance, Employee’ Compensation Ordinance LHER EEFH EEMERR REIMEATRER
and other applicable laws and regulations that have a significant BNETHEETEBREAZENEMNREER (E
impact relating to employment, labor relations, employees’ EIEG) - (RBREKRGD) REMBEAEERERN
remuneration, employees’ compensation insurance, mandatory (D

provident fund and welfare of employees on the Group in the Year.
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Health and Safety

As employees are the most important assets of the Group, the
primary goal is to provide a safe and healthy working environment
for the employees under reasonable and practicable conditions.
The Group is committed to achieving this goal by implementing the
following key measures:

* Upholding a secure work environment free from health
hazards within the Group’s oversight.

*  Promptly addressing and rectifying any identified unsafe
conditions.

+ Enforcing a complete ban on smoking in all enclosed office
areas, without any exceptions.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

While the Group’s operations are mainly office-centric, it
complies with the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Chapter 509 of the laws of Hong Kong) and other pertinent
regulations to ensure a secure workplace and safeguard its
employees from occupational risks. There were no reported
instances of non-compliance with the law leading to substantial
fines or sanctions throughout the Year.

Occupational Health and Safety Data
BEZEREREE

Number of work-related fatalities
HIRTRHE

Rate of work-related fatalities
AIkT X

Lost days due to work injury

AITHBEKAH

Training and Development

All Directors, inclusive of the independent non-executive
Directors, are expected to stay well-informed about their directorial
responsibilities and the Company’s business operations. The Group

facilitates briefings and training sessions to enhance directors’

knowledge and skills. Regular updates concerning the Listing
Rules, other applicable statutory and regulatory frameworks and
the business environment are disseminated to all Directors.
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Furthermore, the Group promotes attendance at relevant
training courses and seminars for both Directors and employees
to stay updated on the latest changes in laws, regulations and
the business environment. An annual performance evaluation is
conducted, and based on the assessment outcomes, commendable
employees are offered suitable training, as well as opportunities for
career growth and advancement.

Labour Standards

The Group enforces employment policies to prevent child and
forced labor, ensuring alignment with local employment laws and
regulations. As part of the employment confirmation process, the
Group’s human resources department mandates job applicants
to submit valid identification documents to confirm lawful
employability, thereby ensuring strict compliance with regulations
prohibiting child and forced labor. Regular reviews of employee
information are conducted to guarantee conformity with relevant
regulations and policies, preventing any violations.

The Group maintains a strict stance against the utilization
of forced labor or child labor within its business activities. Each
employee enters into an employment agreement in compliance
with pertinent laws and regulations. In the event of any suspected
instances of forced labor or child labor, the Group will terminate
the employment contract and initiate a thorough investigation to
determine if additional measures are necessary.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

Throughout the Year, the Group has not identified any
substantial violations of the Employment Ordinance, Employment
of Children Regulations, or other relevant laws and regulations
about the prevention of child or forced labour. Additionally, no
instances of non-compliance leading to noteworthy fines or
sanctions were reported during this period.
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OPERATING PRACTICES AND SOCIAL
INVESTMENT
Supply Chain Management

The Group’s supplier base primarily consists of service
providers and general office suppliers, encompassing items like
water, paper and stationery — all situated in Hong Kong. Supplier
selection generally hinges on their business scope and standing.
These suppliers are required to comply with all pertinent local
and national laws and regulations concerning unethical conduct,
bribery, corruption and other prohibited business practices.

The Group expects its suppliers to implement sound
employment practices, ensuring fair and equitable treatment
of their employees, respecting their rights and fostering a
discrimination-free, child labor-free and forced labor-free work
environment. Suppliers are also mandated to uphold transparent
business processes and maintain high standards of conduct,
avoiding conflicts of interest while prohibiting corruption and
bribery.

Prior to any procurement decisions, the Group conducts due
diligence and assessments on suppliers to mitigate environmental
and social risks throughout the supply chain.

Throughout the Year, the Group was not aware of any key
suppliers causing significant actual or potential adverse effects
concerning business ethics, environmental preservation, human
rights or labor practices. Additionally, there were no reported
incidents of non-compliance among these suppliers concerning
human rights issues.

Product Responsibility

The Group is dedicated to safeguarding the privacy and
confidentiality of personal data belonging to its business partners
and other identifiable individuals. Employees are trained to
responsibly collect, manage and utilize confidential information,
ensuring it's used only for purposes consistent with those outlined
in the contracts.

Due to the nature of its operations, the Group neither sold

nor shipped any products, and it did not encounter any product or
service-related complaints throughout the Year.
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The Group safeguards its intellectual property rights by
registering domain names in Hong Kong, ensuring their renewal
upon expiration. It abides by intellectual property (“IP”) rights
regulations and remained free from any significant infringement of
such rights throughout the Year. The Group is confident that it has
taken all reasonable measures to prevent any violations of its own
IP rights as well as those of third parties.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

Throughout the Year, the Group does not know of any
substantial violations of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance or
other relevant laws and regulations significantly impacting privacy
matters concerning the Group’s provided products and services.
There were no reports of significant fines during this period.

Anti-Corruption

To ensure a fair, ethical and effective business environment, the
Group meticulously adheres to anti-corruption and bribery laws
and regulations, regardless of the geographical area or country
where business is conducted. This includes adherence to the Law
of the PRC on Anti-money Laundering and Hong Kong’s Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance. The Group maintains a zero-tolerance stance
towards bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

All Directors, management personnel and staff members
are mandated to comply with the relevant laws and regulations
concerning the prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering in their respective operational regions as part of their
daily responsibilities. It is the responsibility of all employees not
only to understand and comply with these policies but also to
promptly report any potential violations to the designated individual
or the Board.

Any individual found to contravene these regulations will face
disciplinary action. No significant corruption-related risks were
identified throughout the Year.
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ELEREOER 1 (P EARKAMBEREEE) Rk
EFE T LEBEREN) AEEHER R HFER
MEBERMERBHEK -
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In upholding the highest standards of transparency, integrity
and responsibility, the Group promotes a whistleblowing
mechanism. This allows employees or third parties to anonymously
report any suspected instances of corruption, theft, fraudulent
activities, or conflicts of interest to the Company. The identity of
the whistleblower disclosing the allegation will remain confidential
unless explicitly permitted otherwise. All incidents, allegations or
suspicions of fraud undergo assessment and investigation.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

Throughout the Year, the Group has no knowledge of any
substantial breaches of the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance or
other relevant laws and regulations significantly impacting the
entity regarding bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering.
Additionally, there were no legal cases related to corruption filed
against the Group or its employees during this period.

Community Investment

The Group is dedicated to being a conscientious community
member and strives to create a positive influence within the local
community. Recognizing the value of fostering a harmonious
relationship, the Group believes that such rapport significantly
contributes to its business growth and development.

During the year, the Group contributed HK$28,000 to Yan Oi
Tong, an organization dedicated to offering comprehensive care
services to individuals facing challenges within the Hong Kong

community.

Donations are directed towards offering home support services
to elderly individuals living alone and disadvantaged families
in need. These services encompass household cleaning and
maintenance, food distribution, escort care and more. Moreover, the
Group fosters employee engagement in diverse volunteer events,
fostering a robust social network and extending aid and assistance
to individuals requiring support.
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SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS BAREMNEEHSE
HKEX KPI Aspects Unit 2023 2022
ERXHM Em B —E=-= —F_=
BERENER
A. Environmental
AR
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data
R EEREREREE
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) Kg - 13.5
ARE Tr
Sulphur oxides (SO,) Kg - 0.2
maty Tr
Respirable suspended particles (RSP) Kg - 1.0
AR A SR E R Tr
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions
BERBHHE
Scope 1 emissions Tonnes of CO,e 394 45.6
0515 WA LIRE R
Scope 2 emissions Tonnes of CO,e 2.3 2.7
IS 257 WE— S LIRE R
Scope 3 emissions Tonnes of CO,e 0.75 0.14
15 35 A ME—SLIRE S
Total Tonnes of CO,e 42.4 48.4
@it Mo E e e
Intensity Tonnes of CO,e/employee 21 2.4
mE WA LIREE EE
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced
FEEEREREYLRE
Paper Gsm 640 1,040
R 7/ E TR
A2.1 Energy consumption by type & intensity
REBEASHNEREEREE
Direct energy consumption Giga Joules 749.2 587.1
BERIREE =5
Indirect energy consumption MWh 3.7 3.8
M IR B IKE
— Total MWh-e 211.8 166.8
— 5t KEFE S
— Intensity (by employee) MWh-e/employee 10.6 8.3

-ZE (REBFE)

kREEEER




ENVIRONMENTAL,

R - S RERHRE

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HKEX KPI Aspects Unit 2023 2022
EBRXBM =] B —EC-=fF T
BRERER
B. Social
B.4&
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group, employee category and function
=R EEER  FRAdR EEEIRBEIESINETAY
By gender
ek by
Male No. of employees 15 14
B BB AH
Female No. of employees 5 6
7t =W 4
By employment type
ZIE B 52 5
Full-time No. of employees 20 20
N =P 4
Part-time No. of employees 0 0
e BB AH
By age group
BERHEFE S
<30 No. of employees 0 0
30 AT B8 AR
30-50 No. of employees 13 17
30%E505% BB A
>50 No. of employees 7 3
5057 A £ B8 AR
By employee category
BIESEFE 5
Management No. of employees 7 5
ERE B8 AB
Middle level No. of employees 13 14
W R BE AR
Junior level No. of employees 0 1
AES B8 AR
By function
B EE
Executive No. of employees 7 6
1T B8 A
Technical No. of employees 0 0
ity BE AR
Administrative No. of employees 1 9
B &8 A
Production No. of employees 2 5
HE EE AR
By geographical region
7 EE 5
Hong Kong No. of employees 15 15
BB EE AR
China No. of employees 5 5
B B8 AR
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HKEX KPI Aspects Unit 2023 2022
BEBRBA EBmE B —E-=F -
BERENER
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region
BB FRANRBEZINESRAL R
By gender
715 & 5
Male % 0% 0%
Bt
Female % 0% 0%
It
By age group
RERHEFE 5
<30 % 0% 0%
305 A T
30-50 % 0% 0%
30£507%
>50 % 0% 0%
507% A
By geographical region
7 EE 7
Hong Kong % 0% 0%
£
China % 0% 0%
T
B.2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities
EIRTHAHERLER
Number of work-related fatalities No. of employees 0 0
EITAH B8 A
Rate of work-related fatalities % 0% 0%
EHIT bk
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury
AIGERXIFEE
Days 0 0
H
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained
FIEEBDL
By gender
715 & 5
Male % 0% 0%
S
Female % 0% 0%
Zt
By function
BB
Executive % 0% 0%
T
Technical % 0% 0%
il
Administrative %
B
Production %
HE
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HKEX KPI Aspects Unit 2023 2022
BERXZM fEm B —E-= —E -
HAREERER
B3.2 The average training hours completed
TR Z I F I EGE
By gender
715 &5
Male hour/employee 0 0
S ANCYE
Female hour/employee 0 0
g3 ANCYE =
By function
R EE
Executive hour/employee 0 0
1T ANV
Technical hour/employee 0 0
BT ANV
Administrative hour/employee 0 0
B ANCYE =
Production hour/employee 0 0
EE ANCYE =
B5.1 Number of Suppliers
HEBmEAR
By geographical region
#EHH
Hong Kong No. of suppliers 4 4
BE HEmER
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
CERCEXERAHPERDKRMNE S
% 0% 0%
B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received
BEEBERERRBRENRFEE
No. of complaints 0 0
&3 A
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corruption
EEENESHRARGNEE
No. of cases 0 0
ELS 4=
B8.2 Resources contributed
ERAER
Total amount of donation HKD 28,000 393,000
B 4a R I
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX BEERG (RIR HBRER|ERES)

RE RS

ESG Indicator
R -HEBREREE

Chapter
=4}

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BERERE

Governance Structure

ERRE

(i)

A disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;
HRESQURE HERELASTENEE

Board Statement on ESG
Governance

RE HRER/RENES
S EH

(i)

the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to the
issuer’s businesses); and

EEENRB - HEREAEESHERE BIETH EX
FIREBEENRR HEREGHBEE (BEHETA
EBeRER)HBRE: &

Board Statement on ESG
Governance

RE g RER/RENES
SEH

(iii)

how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related
goals and targets with an explanation of how they relate to
the issuer’s businesses.

BEERNARRE HERELREMERRIER YHEE
FIanfa] B 89T A TS B B -

Board Statement on ESG
Governance

BR e hERAEBHNES
BEH

Reporting Principles

BE R R Al

Materiality
BEEM

The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to identify
and the criteria for the selection of material ESG factors;
(ii) if a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a description
of significant stakeholders identified, and the process and
results of the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

BRRE HEREARESERE: NHNBEERR LB RER
RAENBREIEEELERZNED: () WETASETRHD
E20 EBENNEEFHENELRBETAFOHEZELR
RRAER-

Reporting Principles
B ¥ R A1

Quantitative
21t

Information on the standards, methodologies, assumptions
and/or calculation tools used and source of conversion
factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy
consumption (where applicable) should be disclosed.

BHEERERE RER (WER)FTARNEE . 5% BR
R/ ETAMER - DR AT &8 = 6 R E T 5

=

Reporting Principles

bEE % R A

Annual Report 2022/23 3§ 63

\

b



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R - S RERHRE

ESG Indicator
BB -HEREREE

Chapter
=4-0]

Consistency The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any changes
— 3 to the methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant factors
affecting a meaningful comparison.
BOARERE e NEMETRER AR BREX
EENEE EMAMTEFER L BNAMER-

Reporting Principles
B ¥ JR A1

Balance The ESG report should provide an unbiased picture of the
o i issuer’s performance. The report should avoid selections,

omissions, or presentation formats that may inappropriately
influence a decision or judgment by the report reader.

BE HaREAREERETNR T EMERETANKE &
RAREETREMTEREFEEARARAHENEE BRLZ
HAER -

Reporting Principles
BEE 3 R A

Reporting Boundary
EHREE

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and describing the
process used to identify which entities or operations are included in the ESG report. If there
is a change in the scope, the issuer should explain the difference and reason for the change
BERS HEREIRENERGE REANEMLEEBLEFAARS L RELR
ENBRR - FERBEEMUE  BOTARRETNRZERESHRA

About the Group
b T
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ESG Indicator Chapter
BRI HERERER =4-0]
“Comply or explain” Provisions

[TEFHRAERE| KR

Aspect A1: Emissions

EBEA1 BBy

General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
— I (a) the policies; and 2387

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Note: Air emissions include NO,, SO, and other pollutants regulated
under national laws and regulations. Greenhouse gases include
carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,
perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride. Hazardous wastes
are those defined by national regulations.

BHERMAEREBHN MAKRIHOHESREEREZTERZDN

EEEN:

(a) BL% &

(b) BTHBTABERZENHEERRBROHNER -

M ERHEREERELED HaE L EEMRTEFTIERRRIIR
EMSAY ORERBEF ALK B StHR AR
te¥ 2RI RSB - BEEEVERRAPIMATES -

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Air Emissions
BREBEZFEALA HERU) TE S K AR R R BUR - JEE B
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse | Air and Greenhouse Gas

BRERIERAL2

gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

B (8E1) RaREE (BE2) RERBHNE (ABTE)
R(mEm) BE (NMABES B BHERETE) °

Emissions

BER SR = REEHE X

KPI A1.3
REEMERALS

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FEAAREEEYHEE (UHEFE) R (MER)EE (MAE
EEBf - SERIGHE) -

Waste Management
BEEYE R

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | Waste Management
BARENIEEAIL appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per | &% %) & 12

facility).

PMEXAEEERYMAEE (UEAE) R (HER)BE (NS

ERE - SERIEHE) o
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to | Emissions
BAREUIEZEALS achieve them. BER )

AR OBENE B R R AEDEL B BRMRIAN TR -

KPI A1.6
HEEMIEEREALE

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.
MERBEENBESERYN A Ml P /T 32 /YRR B 1R
N AREDE L BIRAT SR 58 -

Waste Management

BERYERE

0
y | \
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ESG Indicator
BB -HEREREE

Chapter
=4-0]

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,

Use of Resources

BRENIEZA21 electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BERNESNERR/IMEER (NE KRioh) @FEE (A
FEFRGFAHE) REE (NMAGES E BHERETE) -

—RiEE water and other raw materials. BEREA
ERFERER (BEERR KREMEME)HBUER -
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. | Energy Management

BEREE

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of | Water Management
HRENMIEZEA2.2 production volume, per facility). KERE R
BRKERERE (MABESSML BERETHE) -
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps | Energy Management
BREMIEZFEA2.3 taken to achieve them. gERE IR
HALPTRI LM BEIRE AR B R R R ED G L B R EREUE
e
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water | Water Management
HARENIEZEA24 that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps | K& g & 12
taken to achieve them.
FE At SREGER AR ERI BEMRERE - A RAEI S AKX B
BRAEDEEE SRR TSR -
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in | The Group is not involved in
BRENMIEZEA2S5 tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit | business that consumes any
produced. packaging materials
B mATAEEMBNASE (UH:E) R (NER)BEES | A5EUTRREBEREMNE
ff5E- MBS

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resource
EHA3  RERKAEIR

General Disclosure

—RiE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.
WMEBETAHRBERRAERERERZENBK -

The Environment and
Natural Resources
RERRAER

KPI A3.1
BEAMIERA3A

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
B EBEDERBRRAERNEAZERERRERER
B BT

The Environment and
Natural Resources
RERRAER
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ESG Indicator
BB -HEREREE

Chapter
=4-0]

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BHAL: RIREL

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-

Climate Change

BRERIERAMA

— M E related issues which have impacted, and those which may | & {E& 1t
impact, the issuer.
BRIk EHEERAEEHETAELETLENERRIKERH
EHHBE-

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which | Climate Change

have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.

BB RAEEHETAELTZENERRAEEFIEZE &
JEE1TH)

RERI

Aspect B1: Employment
EmEB1 : Ef

General Disclosure

—RiE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare.

EHEFH LA E - BEREA TERS RE FTSKke %

TeE -~ RIRAR A B E A 55 8 T A8 A Y

(a) Eﬁ(ﬁ 253

(b) BEFHETABEAXZENHBERZRAOINOER -

Employment and Labour
Practices

EBREMSTER

KPI B1.1
BREAREEB1

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region.
RIER EEEE (M2 BEER)  FRAER RIEE S
B

o H B

Employment and Labour
Practices

ERREIER

KPI B1.2
HEEMEEB.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

BiR - FRANRSREASNEERKLX-

Employment and Labour
Practices
RERSIER

i
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ESG Indicator
BB -HEREREE

Chapter
=4-0]

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EHB2 : BEHEZ2

General Disclosure Information on:

— M E (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

FRARRLZE2THERERMEREELBEEREN

Health and Safety
EERZE

BEZF (BEERFE)SFERAT T RAABRILE-

(a) B &

(b) BTHETAABTAZENBBERMROINEHR -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each | Health and Safety
BEENIEEB2.1 of the past three years including the reporting year. fREmL s

R PR B R R 25 ARERRTRERTTE -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
BRENIEEB2.2 EIEEETIERS- HERZ 2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures | Health and Safety
HRENIEEB2.3 adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored. fREET S

Aspect B3: Development and Training
EEB3 : #REKRZI

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for

— R E discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal
and external courses paid by the employer.

ERRAEREBIT IIERE R MFZH XA R BUR - H g FI1E

&) o

B aE BB E S AT B EREE N BN AINEIRIE -

Training and Development
Bl R R

BUERNREBRANE D BRERE KNI FIHRE -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and | Training and Development
R ENMIEEB31 employee category (e.g. senior management, middle | 53l &% E
management).
R KEEBERN (NS REEE TREEE)ESHNZI
EEBDL -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by | Training and Development
R ENIEEB3.2 gender and employee category. o)l M R
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[EEB4 : % T#A|

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

General Disclosure

—REE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced labour.

BRAPIEE T oa 514 Th)

(a) B%: &

(b) BTHETABERZENHEBERRBRINER -

Employment and Labour
Practices

RERSIER

KPI B4.1
B ERIEEBAA

Description of measures to review employment practices to
avoid child and forced labour.
il BB OO B EAE R E T RRHIS T

Employment and Labour
Practices
EBEREIEHR

KPI B4.2
BREMIEEB4.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.
e IR B R IE AR ERR A BB TR A 2 5

Employment and Labour
Practices

ERERSTIER

[EEBS5 : fEEERE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

General Disclosure

—RiE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.
ERHEZENREIEERABRECR-

Supply Chain Management
HEREEIE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain Management
HRENEEBS iR E| DO HEREE - e E R
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, | Supply Chain Management
BEENIEEBS.2 number of suppliers where the practices are being | #/E#%E 2

implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.

Rt G AR BEER A MBS MERITERAENNHEERSE

AR AR IT R BT A
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental | Supply Chain Management
FRENIEEBS.3 and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are | &% 12

implemented and monitored.

HRBEBMNFEESERGNRBERESRARNED - AR

HERITRER A
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally | Supply Chain Management
R ENMIEEBS.4 preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, | f & 7% & 12

and how they are implemented and monitored.
M EREHERRRESARRERRRBOEF - A KRE
BT RERT A
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EmB6 . EREE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

General Disclosure

—REE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of

redress.
FHMERERNRBNRERERRLZY BES SEALESEE
WA R RO AR -
(a) B%: &

(b) BFTHETABEAFENHBERZRRIINER -

Product Responsibility
EmAE

KPI B6.1
S E R IEEB6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

Product Responsibility
EmEE

HUHBEEERRERALEBRE  URBEERTRERTE-

EERDEXERBETEAL T REFEEHRMARWN TS -
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received | Product Responsibility
R ENIEEB6.2 and how they are dealt with. EmEM
EEBRERNREOIRFEE AREE T E-
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting | Product Responsibility
B ENIEEB6.3 intellectual property rights. EmEE
fie it B 4 T R AR PB AN G EE R R ARV B A
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall | Product Responsibility
R ENIEEBG6.4 procedures. EmAE
HlEERTBERERBKER -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, | Product Responsibility
R ENIEEBG6.5 and how they are implemented and monitored EmAE
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RIR - HERER

HE

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG Indicator
BB -HEREREE

Chapter
=4-0]

EBMmEB7 : RES

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

General Disclosure

—REE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRAP LRRRR - B3 HRAF ROE R 8B

(a) B%: &

(b) BPHBEITABEARZENBBERRROIEER -

Anti-corruption
k&R

KPI B7.1
B ERIEEBTA

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RBEHAEBETASEEERLTESENESHFARMN
BB MR-

Anti-corruption
RES

MtmERERE TRENREFEI -

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing | Anti-corruption

BEARENIEEBT.2 procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored. k&S
by EE i R RRIE T ARMBERIT RER A

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors | Anti-corruption

BEENIEEBT.3 and staff. k&R

EHEB8 :#HEBRE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

General Disclosure

—REE

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.
FANHEZ2ERTREEMEHERTENBERAER TS
EERERMEHBEK-

Community Investment

HERE

KPI B8.1
FAREMIEEBS.1

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
HIEREB(NHE REFE - SIFR R Xt 8§

E)e

Community Investment

HERE

KPI B8.2
FRENMIEEBS.2

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
area.

EEIRBEMBAER (M BEXKR) -

Community Investment

HERE

il
y 4 \
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB

D & PARTNERS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CAPITAL VC LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Capital VC Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 79 to 167, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 30 September 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBERE

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

HAREXER
AREZFHEEREBEAMNEXHE  RASHAH

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the GAEMBRENERSRAREENEH - ELFHEHER

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

BMEXZERGEVBHRRARMUHAS R ETRE
2o BT eHELFTREHREBNER -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key Audit Matter
HREEREHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNBERNTEEEBEE

Expected credit losses assessment and impairment of other receivables and investments in financial assets at amortised cost
(Refer to Notes 15, 17 and 29(a) in the consolidated financial statements)

H b EWABER A H A B HEEEREZ R EEEERTERAE (2HGEHERZXN 215 - 17Kk29(a))

The Group have amounts receivable on disposal of
investments with an amount of HK$39,577,891 (2022:
HK$67,395,896) and investments in financial assets
at amortised cost with an amount of HK$124,710,814
(2022: HK$165,763,667) as at 30 September 2023. The
unsettled balance is considered significant in amount and
the recoverability of the outstanding balance is subject to
impairment assessment by the Expected Credit Losses
(“ECL") Model under HKFRS 9.

EEER T _=FAA=ZTHZHERERKFRER
39,577,891 7T ( =& — — % : 67,395,8968 7T ) & A # #5 B¢
R EZ2WBEERER124,710814F L (Z T ==
165,763,667 8 L) - RIEEAHEEREEERAREEL
fh AT ENMER FIRBEEEMBREERNFSRIETHIERE
BEE ([AREEEE]) E2UETTHRER G E -

The fair value was assessed by the management with
reference to valuations performed by an independent
valuer engaged by the Group and other information of the
investment.

ERARENHERELS2E E£EZRE 2 BUMEME
A2 EEARZRE 2 KM E R -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

BMEHEEENRENGMETHIEF B

. Obtaining an understanding of the key controls and
processes that management has in place to assess
the expected recovery of these receivables and
investments in financial assets at amortised cost;

. THEEBERTMZFRIBGRIBARABIENEFTEZ
M EERENTARW @A RERE EEEE REF

. Assessing the Group’s policies and procedures for
measuring expected credit losses;
. Al EEEAEEHEERENBERIER:

. Inquiring the management for the status of these
receivable and corroborated explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such as
understanding the credit profile of the debtor, checked
historical and subsequent settlement records;

. MEIRBAMRZE R FRIBENMRI WA FF1LER
BEEEEBNRE N TRHREBANGRAMRRL ZE
B N H B E KRR

. Evaluating the independence, objectivity, competence
and capabilities of the valuer;

e A ER B BB BT

0 Questioning the valuer for the basis and major
assumptions for the estimation of expected credit
losses of these receivables and investments in
financial assets at amortised cost;

. R (LB AD Bt 14 5t 52 35 R W R IR S LA SH R R 5T 8 2
MBEERENTAHGEEFRNEERBE2 /KK
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
HRERER

Estimation of expected credit losses involves significant
judgement as it must reflect information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future conditions. Given
the significance of the other receivables and significant
judgement and estimations involved in the impairment
assessment, we identified the estimation of loss allowance
for other receivables and investments in financial assets at
amortised cost as a key audit matter.
MREHREEBELARBEBBESMN SRR RARKMN
RIEREER WA TEREEERIRERHE -ERXNEf
JE W R IA 8 B A A RORUE APk 8 R R M BT R kA BAMIE S
HEr R EW TR MR B HR A BB EERENEE
BESFAAREREE-
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AREXZEER (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMHWERNTEEEREE

. Assessing the provision on impairment loss of these
receivables based on Expected Credit Loss Model
under HKFRS 9 which requires ongoing measurement
of credit risk associated with financial assets;

. *ETF%E;‘%EM%#&%Z%E‘J FOSRIE TR EEEEEN

A ZERKRIENREBEREG AELHEFE
*ﬁ‘?ﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬂ’ﬂ B Rk
. Obtaining, if any, agreed repayment schedules and

checking if the purchasers had made their settlement
according to the agreed schedules;

. 5%?5'}(ﬁﬂﬁ)Tﬁ%Eﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁﬁi‘%IVﬁﬁﬁ% T ERE
TE I R R A R 5

. Performing background checking for the purchasers
including its credit reports and assets proof for its
ability for repayments if available; and

. %’T?-iﬁéﬁﬁfa?%ﬂé’ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁli&%&ﬂ%‘ A E &
RENMEEZER (MA)
. Working with our valuation specialists to assist and

review the appropriateness of the valuation approach,
methodology and basis of calculation prepared by the
management’s valuer.

. HIGERERSIEHILEREEE 2 (L ERTREREN
HEFRX FERGFEEENEEE -

We have also assessed the adequacy of the relevant notes
disclosure. The related disclosures on the expected credit
losses for these receivables are included in Note 29(a) to
the consolidated financial statements.

HAIRE A EAREMNTREER BBl ZZEURIETE S
EE B R E NGRS VKRR E29(a) ©



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBERE

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

HinEHR

BERAREFANHEMERBE -AMERBEHRL
FRAZER BTEEFEMBERERBMOZH
Bk & o

BPEGEMBERR2BERLTRELMER &
MR A EZEFEMERBEREMTAZERBEW

HBARMYEERAMBRRZBR RANEERH
EHMER THELBREF EEEMENEDS EK
A%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁ&¢%7%%1ﬁﬁﬁ%
REFEREUFFEEAHERBRLAE

ERBPMETHIE HEMARASEMLERFE
BEAHRRL HAFT2HREZXFE UM E - B
I EAE A 3R E -

EENAEERGEMBRRAREZEE
BERAEER MBEEGAMAGHRMZE
%M%ﬁ%ﬁ%&%%< T%W>Zﬁﬁ%ﬁ'%
HAEBRAFNGAVBRR LEREFA/LE
ZAEES AERBREEMBERRLBEFEEK
SRR (T i 2 A EEGFREERR B ) -
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BB

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those changed with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

/6 E#AIREMRAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED

EERAEENGEVBBRRAREZEM (80

RBRGAVBRRE EFRAENE BE5E
FELENRD TEERBEATHEEFERE
ANER URERFELERSFER RIES
BEEH BEEEBRIELEL HFEEMLERN
BRA=

RBARBERGREMBRRAREZER

BANERRRGAMBRRBREBES A FEH
REFHERMERZERERRAMEAERE
WEHBEARMOBERLEZZBEN RS - LREMBE
MZREGRRE BT (ESER)KRIEZIN ABET
TEEAEA B A AR AN REO AT @ER E A
ATBEHAEET-AEREBSKFZRE B
TRERBREBEEEEHEAETZIERTFRLER
TR 2 EREERERM - 8 3R BROM 7] BRAF s #E AR Bl 2
EMNRBRERAERANRBERTAIZEEAERIEZX
EEAMBRREL Z2EERER IR SENE
AR -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBERE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

RBARBELGRESMBRRAREZEE (8)

RIBF BB EAETEZE  RIFER TR

PTREEFZBETREERIEREEER - KPR
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-

THREEZABZAMES URREZE
RREF - BYFEEH BEEEAINEHZE
MIEEHERER -

AEMAEERRREERE UREEMIEE
A R A RERT AR -

REEERMUBBRERER ZEHIERST
HE URBCERZERER BRERTH
i EEERBECEZRNTRBRERREM
ZEMHHBREERTHEE R E - MEFIBALE
RRFEEATHERR RMAARKMOZ
B ETRBIBECYBRRAZBER
BoaMZERETR MERFEREER -
B ERABRE RN EE R E B B
BZERERBRER -AM RAEEMHXIBR
e ERETBAERAELE 28

FEGEMBBRR(BEENEE) 2287
B RABEAR UERBRAMBHREEETAE
BRPINHRzZTAZINBERHREE

Annual Report 2022/23 %% 77



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor report is Lau, Ming Tak Simeon.

D & PARTNERS CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Lau, Ming Tak Simeon

Practising Certificate Number: P07579

Hong Kong, 29 December 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meERkAEMEEEER

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

2023 2022
—E-= = —
Notes HK$ HK$
M &t BT BT
Turnover - 56 (92,314,801) (25,149,110)
Other income, net H b A S8 7 (20,160,417) (1,276,970)
Administrative expenses THER (18,054,705) (17,036,194)
Expected credit loss on financial assets 1% # 84k 451 BR
at amortised cost, net of reversal VB EERREEREE MR (9,584,454) (19,312,686)
Expected credit loss on deposits Re REMBYRRIEZ
and other receivables, net of reversal FEREEEE MKkED (3,297,900) (18,181,068)
Share-based payment expenses VARR 10 A B 2 A R 2 22 - (4,097,371)
Operating loss s 1E (143,412,277)  (85,053,399)
Finance costs LR PPN 8 (6,098,914) (3,072,151)
Loss before tax R Al B 18 9 (149,511,191) (88,125,550)
Income tax credit Frisfi e 10 451,555 -
Loss for the year rEEFR (149,059,636)  (88,125,550)
Loss and total comprehensive expense A2 T REFHE AEG
for the year attributable to equity TEEEBEER
holders of the Company 2 EH XM (149,059,636)  (88,125,550)
Dividend A% 2 11 - -
Loss per share FhEE 12
Basic loss per share BREAREE (0.35) (0.21)
Diluted loss per share TS EE (0.35) (0.21)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REPBARRR

At 30 September 2023 R=ZT=Z=FnA=+H

2023 2022
—E_-= —F-—
Notes HK$ HK$
k3 BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment 5= M & 14 381,120 553,608
Financial assets at fair value EARnBET ABRZEEZ
through profit or loss MBEE 16 - 2,147,000
Investments in financial assets bie: K1) NG| v
at amortised cost MBEEERE 17 120,266,539 117,955,260
120,647,659 120,655,868
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - ZE Rk
other receivables H b JE I FRTB 15 39,830,083 81,127,133
Financial assets at fair value EBARBEAERREZ
through profit or loss MBEE 16 180,597,142 245,413,902
Investments in financial assets R HR AR 2
at amortised cost MHEEEKRE 17 4,444,275 47,808,407
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 18 33,075,167 16,692,655
257,946,667 391,042,097
Current liabilities FEBEE
Other payables and accruals HEMENRERESER 19 25,007,917 20,034,528
Overdrafts B 18 14,813,705 6,079,340
39,821,622 26,113,868
Net current assets RBEEFE 218,125,045 364,928,229
Total assets less current liabilities ZBEXZAEBRRBERE 338,772,704 485,584,097
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds A A A% 1 5 20 18,511,206 15,811,408
Deferred tax liability REFIBEEE 410,651 862,206
18,921,857 16,673,614
Net assets “EFE 319,850,847 468,910,483
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

= N
e AR &
At 30 September 2023 =T _=F LA =+H
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
Notes HK$ HK$
M &t BT BT
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital fi% < 21 105,032,062 105,032,062
Reserves (G 214,818,785 363,878,421
Total equity attributable to EARRERE AEWL
equity holders of the Company A 319,850,847 468,910,483
Net asset value per share FREEFE 23 0.76 1.12

HREOEEFIGTE L RAVBRREN 2T ==

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 167 were
FHTZAZHTNBEEEFESHERRETIELANUT
BEERERESE:

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 December 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chan Cheong Yee Kong Fanpeng
BRE = A, FLHE
Director Director

BE BE




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A LBl

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

Convertible Capital Share
Share Share  bonds equity reduction options  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Total equity
THRRES
BRA R EE BinAE REAEAGE BRERE Ex | BEEH
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
oy oy BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 October 2021 R-Z--%+A-H 85,809,562 1,315,163,854 - 22,826,010 3,589,496  (901,174,293) 526,214,629
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFARZERIAE
expense for the year - - - - - (88,125,550)  (88,125,550)
Placing of new shares (Note 21(a)) EEMRN (Hit21(a)) 17,160,000 (258,721) - - - - 16,901,279
Exercise of share options TEERRE 2,062,500 - - - (786,550) 786,550 2,062,500
Recognition of equity-settled R AR A B AR R AR
share-based payments EOINEN - - - - 4,097,371 - 4,097,371
Recognition of equity component of BRURRES 2 ERD
convertible bond, net of deferred tax MEEEH IR - - 7,760,254 - - - 7,760,254
At 30 September 2022 and RZZEZZFAA=+ERK
1 October 2022 “Z--F1+A-H 105,032,062  1,314,905,133 7,760,254 22,826,010 6,900,317  (988,513,293) 468,910,483
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFARZERXAE
expense for the year - - - - - (149,059,636) (149,059,636)
At 30 September 2023 RZBZZFhA=1H 105,032,062 1,314,905,133 7,760,254 22,826,010 6,900,317 (1,137,572,929) 319,850,847
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERENER

For the year ended 30 September 2023 HZ=_-Z =51

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Amortisation of fair value adjustment
on investments in financial assets
at amortised cost
Dividend income from investments
in listed securities
Gain on disposal of investments in
financial assets at amortised cost
Loss on modification of investments
in financial assets at amortised cost
Loss on extinguishment of investments in
financial assets at amortised cost
Loss on written off of investments in
financial assets at amortised cost
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Interest income
Convertible bond interest expenses
Interest paid on margin payable and overdrafts
Net realised loss on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Net unrealised loss on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Expected credit loss on financial assets
at amortised cost, net of reversal

Expected credit loss on deposits and
other receivables, net of reversal

Share-based payment expenses

Loss on written off of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value loss on derivative asset

A=+RILFE

RETH
Bk B A & 18
VEH AT A%

BE REEITE
RIS R 2 B 7S
BEREZAARE

75 B 5
KEEMESZBEWA

HEREHK AT R
MBEEERE 2K

fi& B i 8 $H P AR DI B 2 BE 7%
BERBEZERE
RIERBHEAATIRZ
MBEEEREZER
jEbize: S o RNl Sl
MBEEEREZER
HEME k& Bz W
FBHA

AT fE 25 A B R X
ENFRFKBRES ZHE
BAREAESEREEZ
MBEEZCER

JE 1R FER
BAREFARBRREZ
MBEEZRER
BB
REBHEARIRZMBEEE
BEHEEERER MEEED
12 N H A e YRR 2 TR
EEEE HhED-
VAR 0 A 27 2 A9 3R X2
MR AR EF ABREE
ZHBEEZ BE
TTETEEEZ ARERE

(149,511,191)

172,488

3,398,380

(931,715)

1,577,236
6,784,801
11,795,199
(280,000)
(21,290,876)

2,699,798
3,399,116

24,369,768

86,487,729
9,584,454

3,297,900

2,147,000
2,415,276

2022
—E-—F
HK$

BT

(88,125,550)

136,321

5,658,584
(370,581)
(200,809)

5,278,056

(24,593,382)
36,897
3,035,254

23,956,983

22,349,021
19,312,686

18,181,068
4,097,371

180,672

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, net

Decrease (increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Increase (decrease) in other payables and
accruals

LELESEDANEERS
wE
BAnEFABREE 2T
BERMFE

BN FIE - REe REBER
R A ()

Hi BN RIA R EERA
g Crl )

(13,884,637)
(48,456,013)
13,479,045

4,973,389

(11,067,409)
(19,504,815)
(16,290,178)

(8,067,438)

Cash used in operations
Dividend income received from investments

REXBHRARE
BERIRE E MBS BB RA

(43,888,216)

(54,929,840)

in listed securities 931,715 370,581
Interest paid on margin payable and EAT 7R R IE iE 2 2 LA
overdrafts (3,399,116) (3,035,254)
Interest received SR &IPS 20,123,764 23,421,634
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES L& EEffABE S FE (26,231,853) (34,172,879)

Annual Report 2022/23 3§ 83



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MEREMER

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

2023 2022
—E-= T
Note HK$ HK$
B e BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Purchases of bonds BEES (20,600,000) (20,000,000)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment & E & & & 2 FrE 308 280,000 -
Purchases of plant and equipment BEME k& - (689,929)
Proceeds from redemption of financial assets & [B 3% # 84 5k AN 71| 8 2 B4 75
at amortised cost BEZEHRIE 30,000,000 5,000,000
Proceeds from disposal of investments in oS R S K R B BR 2
financial assets at amortised cost B EERE ZMERIE = 1,000,000
Repayment of amounts receivable EEHERE 2 EIWKIEA
on disposal of investment 24,200,000 7,600,000
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING BRETBHFRB (FA)REFE
ACTIVITIES 33,880,000 (7,089,929)
CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBHRBES
Proceeds on issue of convertible bonds BTAMRES Z B RE = 21,000,000
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1TFRE IR ¥ 2 FT1S 508 = 2,062,500
Proceeds from issuance of share upon Bl & SERK 18 21T IR (D 2
placement, net of transaction costs FriSsIE B R B A = 16,901,279
CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEFTEFRERS - 39,963,779
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASHAND B®B&RBESEEWHEMN GRD)
CASH EQUIVALENTS ek 7,648,147 (1,299,029)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FURERELEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 10,613,315 11,912,344
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FREASRESEEY
END OF YEAR
— represented by — RN 25 18,261,462 10,613,315
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 18 33,075,167 16,692,655
Overdrafts i (14,813,705) (6,079,340)
18,261,462 10,613,315
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Capital VC Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address
of its principal place of business is Room 2302, 23rd Floor,
New World Tower I, 18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”).

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in investing
in listed and unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 October 2022 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Groups’ financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out

in these consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October Insurance Contracts’

2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 7

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21

86 HHAIRERAH

Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®

Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current and
related amendments to

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction’

International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules'

Supplier Finance
Arrangements®

Lack of Exchangeability*

CAPITAL VC LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASSs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV IIRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs to used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results
of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the period are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and/or annual
rates of depreciation adopted, if any, are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 25%
Office equipment 25%
Computers 25%
Motor vehicles 25%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of office that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases is
recognised as expense on a straight line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Financial asset or financial liability, which is
determined the fair value at initial recognition different
from the transaction price, measures the fair value by
using valuation technique with unobservable inputs used.
Differences may arise between the fair value at initial
recognition (which, in accordance with HKFRS 13 and
HKFRS 9, is normally the transaction price) and the amount
determined at initial recognition using the valuation technique.
Any such differences between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price which is not evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets. After initial recognition, the deferred
differences as a gain or loss only to the extent that it arises
from a change in a factor that market participants would take
into account when pricing the asset.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income or expense is recognised on an effective interest

basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

In addition, a financial asset with an early termination term
is classified as financial assets at amortised cost only if the
prepayment amount substantially represented unpaid amounts
of principal and interest, which could include reasonable
additional compensation for the early termination of the
contract.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the
date of initial application of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly

reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included

in the “Turnover” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowances for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including other receivables, investments in financial assets at
amortised cost and cash and cash equivalents). The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

96

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

0 an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’'s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

BHHAIREIRAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

98

(i)

(iii)

EHAIRARAF

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the

following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collateral held by the Group).

CAPITAL VC LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped by aging basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV IIRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

Modification of financial assets
A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

Except for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform in which the Group applies the practical expedient,
when the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in
a substantial modification from original terms taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if
the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new
terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received, and
discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least
10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial asset.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial assets will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial assets and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial asset
is recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including other payables
and overdrafts are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds are classified
separately as financial liability, equity and derivative
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability an
equity instrument and a derivative. A conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent
periods, the debt component of the convertible bonds are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the
fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be remained in equity. Where
the conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity
date of the convertible bonds, the balance recognised in
equity will be transferred to accumulated losses. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability, equity and derivative
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component
are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses of tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amounts, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Revenue recognition

Dividend income from investments in listed securities
including financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount.

Other income is recognised whenever it is received or

receivable.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
period. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit
or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated financial statements in the period in
which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of

the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share

options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages, salaries, annual leaves and sick leaves) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 2, the directors of the Group are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(i) Useful lives and residual values of items of

plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values
of items of plant and equipment, the Group has to
consider various factors, such as expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on
the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of
the asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/or
the residual values of items of plant and equipment
are different from previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed, at each financial year end
date based on changes in circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. HEHTHABPEREZETERIR (&)
(Continued)
(ii) Estimation of impairment loss recognised in

(i) EFFEAERRERZBERSTIRZ

respect of other receivables and investments in
financial assets at amortised cost

The Group individually assesses the ECL for other
receivables and investments in financial assets at
amortised cost. The assessment is based on the credit
profile of the debtors, and the historical repayment record
of the debtors taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the credit profile and the historical repayment record
of the debtors are reassessed and changes as the
forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s other receivable and investments in financial
assets at amortised cost are disclosed in Notes 15, 17
and 29(a).

(iii) Valuation of unlisted investments

In the absence of current prices in active market for
similar unlisted equity securities, the Group determines
the fair values by using discounted cash flow valuation
technique with input not based on observable market
data and other available information.

The carrying amounts of the unlisted investments was
written off as at 30 September 2023 (2022: HK$2,147,000),
further details of which are set out in Note 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

(iv) Income tax
The Group is subject to income tax. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income tax.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of the business.

The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination

is made.

5. TURNOVER
The amount of each significant category of turnover and
timing of revenue recognitions are as follows:

A FTHEBE R 2 EERR (#)

(iv) FREH
AEEABMAEH -ETHEHEERE
HEAHE -AEXBBEPZERH KT
B ARHEERAIIA

AEBEREBERBTABMASIMNBEINE
ZiEEH AR EREERAAE M
ZEFHNRRUBERENEARSE
TR FRAZEKFEFELETE 6B AR
H P 1SR SR ST TR TR A

EERE
FIEENEEEEARS S &R YR )
T

2023 2022
—E-= —=E -

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Net realised loss on financial assets BAnEsABE ([EARE

at fair value through profit or loss ARSI RECMBEEE

(“FVTPL) ERBEEFE (24,369,768)  (23,956,983)
Net unrealised loss on financial BARBEd A EBERECWKEE L

assets at FVTPL REIRERIFE (86,487,729) (22,349,021)
Dividend income from investments KEETRFZBREBA

in listed securities

Bank and bond interest income RITREFFBWMA
Gain on disposal of investments in IS R B K AR B BR 2
financial assets at amortised cost HHREERE W

931,715 370,581
17,610,981 20,585,504
- 200,809

(92,314,801) (25,149,110)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular reports reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker for decisions about
resources allocated to the Group’s business components and
for the review of the performance of those components.

The principal activities of the Group are investments in
listed and unlisted companies. The Group has identified the
operating and reportable segments in the current year as
follows:

(i) Investments in listed securities and unlisted bonds
(i) Investment in unlisted securities

For the profit and loss, except for revenue, other income and
finance costs, others are not allocated to segment.

Plant and equipment, tax recoverable, certain amount of
accruals and certain amount of prepayments, deposits and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents, were not
allocated to segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEFR (@)
Segment revenue and results PHBREREE

For the year ended 30 September 2023 BE-_Z_=FhAA=1+HLEE

Investment in

Investment in

listed securities unlisted
and unlisted bonds securities Unallocated Total
IHEER
FLHEFRE FLHEFRE FAE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
Segment revenue 2l (92,326,825) - 12,024 (92,314,801)
Expected credit loss on BREBEHAIERZ
financial assets at amortised cost, UBEERAEEER:
net of reversal k&R (9,584,454) - - (9,584,454)
Expected credit loss on deposits HEREMEWHIEL
and other receivables, HEEEHE NRAR
net of reversal - (3,297,900) - (3,297,900)
Administrative expenses THER (3,398,380) - (14,656,325) (18,054,705)
Segment result L (105,309,659) (3,207,900) (14,644,301) (123,251,860)
Other income, net HH A FE (20,157,236) 3,679,895 (3,683,076) (20,160,417)
Finance costs RER A (3,399,116 - (2,699,798) (6,098,914)
Loss before tax BB A (128,866,011) 381,095 (21,027,175 (149,511,191)
Income tax credit iR - - 451,555 451,555
Loss for the year AEEEE (128,866,011) 381,095 (20,575,620) (149,059,636)
Segment assets PHEE 306,638,561 39,577,891 32,377,874 378,594,326
Segment liabilities NEEE 36,584,870 - 22,158,609 58,743,479
Other segment information Hittn HEH
Net realised loss on BArBE ANBREE L
financial assets at FVTPL BRAEZCEBERFE (24,369,768) - - (24,369,768)
Net unrealised loss on BAnBIABREEE
financial assets at FVTPL HREEZAERERTE (86,487,729) - - (86,487,729)
Interest income FIEWA 17,598,957 3,679,895 12,024 21,290,876
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment &/ = &R H 2 W - - 280,000 280,000
Amortisation of fair value adjustment 1% K 515 2 BT A
on investments in financial assets REZDRAEAREH
at amortised cost (3,398,380) - - (3,398,380)
Expected credit loss on deposits and ~ #%4¢ K E &R FIE 2
other receivables, net of reversal BHEERE NRER = (3,297,900) = (3,297,900)
Expected credit loss on financial REBRAIER B BEE
assets at amortised cost, net of LEHEEER:
reversal B EE (9,584,454) - - (9,584,454)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 7HESR (#)

PEWREEREE (F)
BHE_ZT-_—_FANA=THLFE

Segment revenue and results (Continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2022

114 EHARBRAF

Investment in

Investment in

listed securities unlisted
and unlisted bonds securities Unallocated Total
ITEHR
FLMESFRE FEMEFRE KA @zt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B B
Segment revenue AP (20,128,186) (5,022,180) 1,256 (25,149,110)
Expected credit loss on REERAIEZ
financial assets at amortised cost, UBEERAEEER:
net of reversal nHAER (19,312,686) - - (19,312,686)
Expected credit loss on deposits REREMEWTIEL
and other receivables, HEEEHE NREAR
net of reversal (3,193,440) (14,087,628) - (18,181,068)
Administrative expenses THER (5,658,584) - (11,377,610) (17,036,194)
Segment result L (48,292,896) (20,009,808) (11,376,354) (79,679,058)
Other income, net Hip A FE (5,278,056) 4,007,878 (6,792) (1,276,970)
Share-based payment expenses WD BER ZAHAX - - (4,097,371) (4,097,371)
Finance costs BER K (3,035,254) - (36,897) (3,072,151)
Loss before tax BB A (56,606,206) (16,001,030) (15,517.414) (88,125,550)
Income tax credit FEHES - - - -
Loss for the year AEEEA (56,606,206) (16,001,030) (15,517.414) (88,125,550)
Segment assets PHEE 425,371,752 69,542,896 16,783,317 511,697,965
Segment liabilities NHEE 21,955,902 - 20,831,580 42,787,482
Other segment information HEthpHEs
Net realised loss on BAnBIABREE
financial assets at FVTPL BYAEZCEBERSE (19,874,383) (4,082,600) : (23,056,983)
Net unrealised loss on BOAEFABRREL
financial assets at FVTPL MBEAEL KRB ERTHE (21,409,441) (939,580) = (22,349,021)
Interest income FIEWA 20,584,248 = 1,256 20,585,504
Amortisation of fair value adjustment R ##HR AT E 2 BEEE
on investments in financial assets REZDRAERAREH
at amortised cost (5,658,584) - - (5,658,584)
Expected credit loss on deposits and ~ #& 4 K E R FE 2
other receivables, net of reversal HHEEEE NRER (3,193,440) (14,987,628) = (18,181,068)
Expected credit loss on financial REBRAIE B BEE
assets at amortised cost, net of LEHEEER:
reversal Mk EE (19,312,686) L - (19,312,686)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DIEHR (@)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PBRERFEE (FE)
The Group’s operations and specified non-current assets are AEBZEERFEIRRBDEEIMURES -

located in Hong Kong.

Given that the nature of the Group’s operation is investment ENAEEMEETERIRE L RIELTAR
in listed and unlisted companies, there was no information At EEEASERRATERFPNER -

regarding major customers as determined by the Group.

7. OTHER INCOME, NET 7. HiWAFHE
2023 2022
—_E_= —_E-
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Other interest income HAth F B A 3,679,895 4,007,878
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment & E k& E 2 Wi 280,000 -
Loss on extinguishment of investments B EREIHA AR 2
in financial assets at amortised costs MBEEREZEE (6,784,801) -
Loss on modification of investments 1B BIR B SHA AT R 2
in financial assets at amortised costs HBEEEREZEE (1,577,236) (5,278,056)
Loss on written off of financial assets MEEER AR B AEBRER
at fair value through profit or loss MG EE BB (2,147,000) -
Loss on written off of investments in MWSE IR SR AN B BR 2
financial assets at amortised costs MBEEREZEE (11,795,199) -
Sundry income ESIENGN 599,200 173,880
Fair value loss on derivative asset METHEBEEZ ARABEERE (2,415,276) (180,672)
(20,160,417) (1,276,970)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WMERAX
2023 2022
—E—-= i
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest expenses on borrowings: BEZAMERAS:
— margin accounts —HFREP 1,728,125 2,225,654
— overdrafts — &% 1,670,991 809,600
— convertible bonds — Al AR E 5 2,699,798 36,897
6,098,914 3,072,151
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. BRBATEHE
The Group’s loss before tax has been arrived at after REBEZRBAEED R :
charging:
2023 2022
—E-=fF —E-—
Notes HK$ HK$
M aE BT T
Directors’ emoluments BE=Me 13 1,380,000 2,482,814
Staff costs BITRA
— Salaries, allowances and — e EMEKEMEF
other benefits 3,076,914 3,147,121

— MPF Scheme contributions —RIE D AT B 101,898 81,149

— Share-based payment expenses — RN BERZ HRAX - 2,995,757
Total staff costs MEIRA (BIEESIE)

(including Directors’ emoluments) 4,558,812 8,706,841
Auditor’s remuneration % AT B & 595,000 550,000
Depreciation for plant and equipment WMEREETE 172,488 136,321
Amortisation of fair value adjustment REEHK AR 2

on investments in financial assets MBEEREZ AR B

at amortised cost 17 3,398,380 5,658,584
Operating lease rentals wEAY e 146,000 145,200
Donation B 28,000 393,000
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ma

BATE R AR MY RE

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

10.

INCOME TAX CREDIT

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group has no assessable profits for the year ended
30 September 2023 and 2022.

10. FIBHE R
HRASEHE T _=FRK_T=-__F1A
“TRAEFEVYEERB SN ML EREEFR
SR B

2023 2022

—E=-= —F-—
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profit tax BV IE—E B IS - -
Deferred tax credit FIEFTEIE % 451,555 -
451,555 -

The income tax for the year ended 30 September 2023
and 2022 can be reconciled to the loss before tax per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income respectively as follows:

Loss before tax M AT E 18

HE T ZFR-_FT-__FNA=ZFTHILFE
ZREHAEFAEEREMEmKER 2B
RIEEBEHESRIMAT :

2023 2022
—E=-= T F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

(149,511,191) (88,125,550)

Nominal tax at domestic income tax rate X AN FTIST L16.5% 1 HE 2 BETHIA

of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (2= =% :16.5%) (24,669,347)  (14,540,716)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBWA 2 %78

tax purpose (773,047) (87,956)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR 2 B 2 W%

for tax purpose 7,285,507 9,410,644
Tax effect of temporary differences RAERYHEB BB E

not recognised - (2,365)
Tax effect of utilisation of temporary BRI ABAEREZBZHETE

differences previously not recognised 37,784 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FERZHRBEREIRBETE 17,667,548 5,220,393
Income tax credit Frigi i % (451,555) =

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$998,142,641 (2022: HK$890,622,532) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to
the unpredictability of future profits stream. No unrecognised
tax losses were expired during the year (2022: HK$258,542).
Other unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

RBEEHR AEE2ADAREEBEER
998,142,641/8 7L (—Z — — 4 : 890,622,532/8
70+ AR 8 R 2RO F) o R R AE TEURI SR 2R s
T M ES AR ARIEEERRELERIBEE -
WMERERTIEERE (ZZ =4 :258,542/57T)
T AN 4F 5 JE i o EL A 2R T SR A% 18 /85 15 AT B A BR A
T =
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e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

11. DIVIDEND 11. RE
The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend EEgU MTERRNEBEE-S-=FhLA="1H
for the year ended 30 September 2023 (2022: Nil). FFEZRE(ZB - 8\)-
12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share ARREBEANEBESRERNREEEBDIZAT
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the HIRFTHE -
following data:
2023 2022
—EgE=-= =
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Loss:

Loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company for the purposes of basic
and diluted loss per share

Number of shares:

Weighted average number of

iR

AR ESRERREEEHERN

RRAREE AEBLEAFERE

i 88

AR ESRERNEERDN

(149,059,636)

(88,125,550)

ordinary shares for the purpose of B AR hNAE T

basic loss per share 420,128,249 417,130,523
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: B #8 LB T2
Share options =i g3 —* —*
Convertible bonds ;R ES —* —*
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EEREEEEY

shares for the purpose of L@ T a8

diluted loss per share 420,128,249 417,130,523

* The Company had no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the

ZERZE_FAR=ZTRLEFE

year ended 30 September 2023 and 2022. The share options and
convertible bonds during the year ended 30 September 2023
and 2022 were anti-dilutive.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 13. EEREREEEMS
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) E=M=
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors ENSENTEEE 20T

were as follows:

Other emoluments

At e
Salaries,
allowances, MPF Share
and other  Performance Scheme options
Fees benefits bonus contributions expenses Total
e 28 BEE
e  REMERN EMIA SEMR BRERX @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Year ended BE-E-=R
30 September 2023 NRZTHLEEE
Executive directors: HiTES:
Chan Cheong Yee BREZE 600,000 = = = = 600,000
Kong Fanpeng LA 360,000 - - - = 360,000
Independent non-executive BUFHTEES:
directors:
Cheung Wai Kin RER 180,000 - - - - 180,000
Lai Fun Yin REE 120,000 - - - - 120,000
Lee Ming Gin ZHIE 120,000 - - - - 120,000

1,380,000 - - - 1,380,000
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For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE
13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

13. EERSREEEMS (&)

(a) EEM= (&)

Other emoluments

Afndle
Salaries,
allowances, MPF Share
and other  Performance Scheme options
Fees benefits bonus  contributions expenses Total
Ea = ®EE
we  REMEN BREAL SRR BRERS @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT B BT B
Year ended BHz-=®-—f
30 September 2022 NA=THLEE
Executive directors: HiTES:
Chan Cheong Yee GER 600,000 - - 1,200 550,807 1,152,007
Kong Fanpeng LA 360,000 - - - 550,807 910,807
Independent non-executive BYFHTES:
directors:
Cheung Wai Kin RER 180,000 - - - - 180,000
Lai Fun Yin REz 120,000 - - - - 120,000
Lee Ming Gin FHIE 120,000 - - - - 120,000
1,380,000 - - 1,200 1,101,614 2,482,814

The directors’ fees shown above represented
emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its
subsidiary undertakings.

No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year ended 30 September 2023 and
30 September 2022. No incentive payment for joining
the Group or compensation for loss for office was
paid or payable to any director during the year ended
30 September 2023 and 30 September 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

The remuneration of directors including the performance
bonus is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individual and
market trends.

Senior management’s emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group during the year ended 30 September 2023,
two (2022: two) were directors of the Company whose

13. EERSREEEMS (&)

(a) EEM= (#)
BEEHM(BEEREL) VhEFHEES
REBEBAMALZRERTSBE MERE -

(b) SREEEMWS
REBPRBE-_ZE-_=FALA=1THILHE
EzhEaEaHFATEEME (ZE=2Z

BIRRNAEE FEZWHEHN L H

emoluments were set out above. The emoluments of the B-R(ZEZ_F =R )meaH AT ZH
remaining three (2022: three) highest paid individuals ST
were as follows:
2023 2022
—E_= =
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries, allowances e R MEMEF
and other benefits 1,133,560 1,725,000
MPF scheme contributions BEE AR 32,150 35,450
Share options expenses BB - 499,293
1,165,710 2,259,743

The emoluments of the three (2022: three) highest paid
individuals fall in the following band:

B < 48 75
£ 21,000,000/ 7T

Emoluments band
Nil — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

=R (B F ZR)RSFALZHNE
BAT AR

2023 2022
—ZE_-= ==
3 2

1,000,001 7 £1,500,000/% 7T —

No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss for office was paid or payable
to any highest paid individuals (including directors and
other employees) during the year ended 30 September
2023 and 2022.

REBEE_F==FF=Z — = EHNH =+
BLEFE BEREAZSHAL(BRE
ERHEMER)XNKENERME (ER
HMARNEE 2 R AF RBER (S -
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For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

14. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. BERRE
Furniture Office Motor
and fixtures equipment Computers vehicles Total
BREEE HBAZERB BN AE )
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
COST D%
At 1 October 2021 RZZEZ—-5+A—H 318,736 215,432 169,300 3,574,494 4,277,962
Additions RE - - - 689,929 689,929
At 30 September 2022 and R-ZE-ZERA=T1H
1 October 2022 R-E--%+A-H 318,736 215,432 169,300 4,264,423 4,967,891
Disposals HE - - - (2,001,000) (2,001,000)
At 30 September 2023 R-ZZE-_=%¥RA=1H 318,736 215,432 169,300 2,263,423 2,966,891
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION R E
At 1 October 2021 R-ZE-—F+7—H 318,736 215,432 169,300 3,574,494 4,277,962
Charge for the year AEEXH - - - 136,321 136,321
At 30 September 2022 and RZBZZEAA=TH
1 October 2022 R=Z-=%+A-H 318,736 215,432 169,300 3,710,815 4,414,283
Charge for the year AEESH - - - 172,488 172,488
Eliminated on disposals & R 8H - - - (2,001,000)  (2,001,000)
At 30 September 2023 R-ZZE-_=FRA=1H 318,736 215,432 169,300 1,882,303 2,585,771
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 30 September 2023 R-EBE-=¥RA=1H - - - 381,120 381,120
At 30 September 2022 R-ZE-—ERA=1H - - - 553,608 553,608

In view of there are loss making during the year due to

unsatisfactory investments, the Group performed impairment

assessment of the plant and equipment. The recoverable

amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and

value in use.

For the year ended 30 September 2023 and 2022, the Group
estimates the recoverable amounts of the plant and equipment

based on higher of fair value less costs of disposal. The

carrying amount of the relevant assets does not exceed the

recoverable amount based on fair value less costs of disposal

and no impairment has been recognised.
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For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 15. I RIE REREMEKRRE
RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
—E=-= —E - 4F
Notes HK$ HK$
M it BT BT
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - 2 REMmEWFKIE
other receivables 221,328 609,302
Margin receivables FEUFF B IR (a) 30,864 13,121,935
Amounts receivable on HERE Z B FIE
disposal of investments (b) 39,577,891 67,395,896
39,830,083 81,127,133
The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other RBMERR BARBE RS REMERFIEZ
receivables at the end of the reporting period approximated EEMEEEQNAEBRS -

their fair values.

Notes: Bt iz
(@) Margin receivables are generated from investment in financial (@) RAFE BARBNABRERECMBEER
assets at FVTPL, with interest rates ranged from 0.001% to ERTEE 2 FEWFT R K E TR F R E AN F0.001
0.875% (2022: 0.001% to 0.002%) per annum for the year. [EZ%0.875/E (=% = =4 :0.001/Z £0.002F ) 5+
& .
(b) The balance is represented by receivables from the purchasers (b) HHARRERATERZHKIEBLZ7]:
of:
2023 2022
—E-=F —=E- =
HK$ HK$
BT PBTT
Equity interests of: R
Starfame Investments Limited EREERRAA - 3,379,234
Kendervon Profits Inc. Kendervon Profits Inc. 28,108,542 50,073,057
Bonds issued by: REBITZES:
Profit Big Enterprises Limited B EEBRRAA 11,469,349 13,806,560
Others EAh - 137,045
39,577,891 67,395,896
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For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z—-Z—

ZEAR=THLEE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 30 September comprise:

16. RAREFTAERREECYBEE

RAAZTHRRARBEFABRSREZHBEE

BIE:
2023 2022
—E-=F —_E-
Notes HK$ HK$
ok BT BT
Fair value: NRfE:
Convertible bonds derivative AMRESITET A 20 801,023 3,216,299
Unlisted security I LEMEH (b) - 2,147,000
Listed securities held for trading BIEEE LmHESH
— listed in Hong Kong —&B& L™ 179,796,119 242,197,603
Suspended stocks listed in Hong Kong &8 E W E{E 5 8% (a) - -
180,597,142 247,560,902
Analysed as: R i~
Current assets mENE E 180,597,142 245,413,902
Non-current assets ERHEE = 2,147,000
180,597,142 247,560,902
Notes: Brat

(@) The amount of suspended stocks represented the shares are
uncertain to resume trading in foreseeable future.

(b) The unlisted investment was dissolved in July 2023, the amount
of unlisted security was written off and set out in note 7 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. BAAEFABREEZHKEE (&)
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Particulars of the listed securities, which are included in the ITHEHF(GIAZE =R =T =__Fh A
ten largest investments of the Group held as at 30 September ZTHEHRFBAEZREETKEE) ZFBOT :

2023 and 2022, are as follows:

Percentage of Percentage of ~ Net assets/

market value Unrealised Realised Dividend equity interest (liabilities)

to the Group’s gain/(loss) gain/(loss) received attributable to attributable to

Market value  total assets recognised for recognised for during the the Group the Group

Place of Particulars of Acquisition as at as at the year ended the year ended  year ended as at asat

Name Note  incorporation equity interest held cost 30 September 30 September 30 ber 30 Sep! 30 September 30 September 30 Septemb
R 53 Bz
AAZ+E  AAZtE AAZ+H Bz

ZmEEAEE LEE LEE  hAZTE RA

MhB=t1H KEAE DRAKEE DRICER LFEZ & fh
28 FERARHEFE L EES 2 BAk Wi/ (BB K&/ (58 BHRE REREAMMN
HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
WLS Holdings Limited (i)~ Cayman Islands*  Ordinary shares
ERZRERAT Raig ERK
-2023 44,851,410 23,705,370 6.26%  (21,146,040)  (1,748,499) - 4.23% 16,240,112
-Z%-=f%
-2022 47,803,136 59,048,080 11.54% 11,244,944 (145,436) - 4.52% 22,020,852
-—%--
Fullsun International Holdings Group Company Limited (i) Bermuda Ordinary shares
BREREREEERAA BRE LER
-2023 5493404 21,320,000 5.63% 15,826,596 - - 3.00% (3,214,670)
-ZF-=fF
-2022 - - - - - - - -
-Z%-Zf
Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited (i)~ Cayman Islands*  Ordinary shares
ERNEBERERLR Res LER
-2023 10,434,772 11,547,800 3.05% 1,113,028 - - 2.04% 7,156,116
S 210,819 184,000 0.05% (26,819) - - 0.04% 122,364
-Z%zZF
Suncorp Technologies Limited (i) Bermuda Ordinary shares
HERZERAT BRE LER
-2023 33,225,514 8,624,590 2.28%  (24,600,924) - - 2.16% 3,945,110
-Z%-=f
-2022 31,830,726 9,976,033 2.64%  (21,854,693) 2,683,175 - 1.83% 3,960,340
-Z%CZF
hmvod Limited (v)  Cayman Islands  Ordinary shares
hmvod 585 B2 7 HeHs LAk
-2023 6,405,715 7,075,890 1.87% 670,175 575,222 - 4.49% (3,277,655)
-—%-=F
-2022 6,992,559 - - (6,992,559) (711,722) - 4.90% (3,004,288)
-Z%--F
Bradaverse Education (Int') Investments Group Limited
REEAE (BR)REAEEERLR
(Formerly known as “Hong Kong Education (Int) (vi)  Cayman Islands*  Ordinary shares
Investments Limited”) ‘
(MEIEAHE (AR REEEERAA]) Res LR
-2023 4,224,663 6,531,840 1.73% 2,307,177 (1,251,059) - 0.65% 725,452
- 270227_ 13,704,592 23,859,200 4.66% 10,154,608 (2,399,633) - 2.50% 3,645,025
e
SEEC Media Group Limited (vif)  Bermuda Ordinary shares
HABEEEERAA BRE LAk
-2023 19,724,170 5,134,280 1.36%  (14,589,890) - - 2.58% 5,427,907
-Z%-=f
-2022 19,718,159 21,096,494 4.12% 1,378,335 (23,776) - 2.58% 6,043,263
[ o
(vii) ~ Cayman Island  Ordinary shares
HeHs LAk
2,375,538 3,570,000 0.94% 1,194,462 (3.292.036) - 0.42% 897,603
15,001,822 16,789,500 3.28% 1,787,678 646,317 - 2.05% 4,094,486
*  Continued in Bermuda with limited liability * REREGFEZARAA
# The stock was suspended during the year ended 30 September # ZRERBEE_E_—_FNA=THLEEFEE=
2022.The stock was resumed on 1 March 2023. Ry GBRER_E == —HRERS-
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For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(i)  WLS Holdings Limited (stock code: 8021) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of scaffolding, fitting out
services and other services for construction and buildings work,
provision of gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment
installation, maintenance services, money lending business,
securities brokerage, margin financing, securities investment
business and assets management business. Net loss attributable
to equity holders of approximately HK$112 million (year ended
30 April 2022: HK$11 million) was recognised for the year ended
30 April 2023. According to the latest published consolidated
financial statements of WLS Holdings Limited, as at 31 October
2023, its net asset value attributable to equity holders was
approximately HK$384 million (As at 31 October 2022: HK$487
million).

(ii)  Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code:
627) and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property
development and property investment businesses in China and
Hong Kong. Loss attributable to equity holders of approximately
RMB664 million (year ended 31 December 2021: RMB580
million) was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2022. According to the latest published consolidated financial
statements of Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited,
as at 30 June 2023, its net liabilities value attributable to equity
holders was approximately RMB996 million (As at 30 June 2022:
RMB391 million).

(iii) Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8081) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in mobile internet
business, hospitality and related services in Australia, money
lending business and assets investments business. Profit
attributable to equity holders of approximately HK$11 million
(year ended 31 December 2021: HK$56 million) was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2022. According to the latest
published consolidated financial statements of Hang Tai Yue
Group Holdings Limited, as at 30 June 2023, its net asset value
attributable to equity holders was approximately HK$351 million
(As at 30 June 2022: HK$306 million).
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16. B A

Wit

U]

(i)

(iii)

AREFAEBZREECVBEE (&)

ERERAR AR (RMHRS:8021) R EKHE
ARRAFERFRHEEERBETIEMERER
BEERBREMBREREFIERS BHS
MItEA PEHEREREEERM 2 ZE REE
fR7s MEXEL BFHELL FERE BHFR
EEBREEEBEB - REE-_T=-=-FMA
—THEFEBRBREFEARGERTEA
#47112,000,0008 L (BHE T - _FMNA =+
HIEFE 11,000,000 L) - BREBEERERE
RARGFAEZGREMBRE R Z=F
TA=Z+—B EREFAEABGLEEZERN
384,000,000 L (R-ZE-—F+A=+—8:
487,000,000/ 7T.) °

BREREREEFR AR (RHR:627) &
HMBRAREERFEREASREMERER
MERBEK RBE-_T-__F+=-A=+—
HIEFERRAREREABRGERANARYE
664,000,000t (BZ-T-_—F+=-A=+—H
IFEE - AR%580,000,0007T ) ° 18 15 48 2% Bl B 4%
Hx’%@ﬁﬁﬁ AEMTIBEZREVMBRE K=

—FXNA=TH HBREZSBARGEEETF
%’;ﬁ%@ﬁw\i%ggaooo,oooﬁ(ﬁé TZZFKA
=+8: AK%391,000,0007T) °

EHRBEETERARAR (RHRE:8081) RE
MEAREZRBNNERHEHAEXER B/E
RIEERE EEEBREEREET -REE=
T _FF- A+ BLEERRABRESEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Suncorp Technologies Limited (stock code: 1063) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the processing and
trading of used computer-related components, money lending
business, securities brokerage and underwriting business and
sales of clothes and beauty products business. Loss attributable
to equity holders of approximately HK$57 million (year ended
31 December 2021: HK$59 million) was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2022. According to the latest published
consolidated financial statements of Suncorp Technologies
Limited, as at 30 June 2023, its net asset value attributable to
equity holders was approximately HK$183 million (As at 30 June
2022: HK$216 million).

hmvod Limited (stock code: 8103) and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in distribution and production of films,
television programmes and music production on OTT platforms,
information technology engineering and technical support
services and IT service. Loss attributable to equity holders
of approximately HK$12 million (year ended 31 March 2022:
HK$28 million) was recognised for the year ended 31 March
2023. According to the latest published consolidated financial
statements of hmvod Limited, as at 30 September 2023, its net
liabilities value attributable to equity holders was approximately
HK$73 million (As at 30 September 2022: HK$61 million).

Bradaverse Education (Int’l) Investments Group Limited (formerly
known as “Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited”)
(stock code: 1082) and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
provision of private educational services, investment in securities
and money lending business. Loss attributable to equity holders
of approximately HK$29 million (year ended 30 June 2022:
HK$33 million) was recognised for the year ended 30 June
2023. According to the latest published consolidated financial
statements of Hong Kong Education (Int’l) Investments Limited,
as at 30 June 2023, its net asset value attributable to equity
holders was approximately HK$112 million (As at 30 June 2022:
HK$146 million).

SEEC Media Group Limited (stock code: 205) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in advertising and sales
of books and magazines; securities broking; money lending
and e-commerce. Net loss attributable to equity holders of
approximately HK$82 million (year ended 31 December 2021:
HK$40 million) was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2022. According to the latest published consolidated financial
statements of SEEC Media Group Limited, as at 30 June
2023, its net asset value attributable to equity holders was
approximately HK$210 million (As at 30 June 2022: HK$234
million).

16. B A

AREFAEBZREECVBEE (&)

Wizt (#)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)
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16.

17.

128 EHARBRAF

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(viii) Silver Tide Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1943) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of formwork
works services to both the public and private sectors in the
construction industry in Hong Kong. The formwork business
undertaken by the group mainly include (i) traditional formwork
using timber and plywood; and (ii) system formwork using
aluminium and steel. Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders

of approximately HK$5 million (year ended 31 March 2022:

HK$(34) million) was recognised for the year ended 31 March
2023. According to the latest published consolidated financial

statements of Silver Tide Holdings Limited as at 30 September

2023, its net asset value attributable to equity holders was

approximately HK$214 million (As at 30 September 2022:

HK$200 million).

The Group has pledged the financial assets at FVTPL of
HK$105,944,151 (2022: HK$97,717,941) to secure the margin
payables granted to the Group.

INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AT
AMORTISED COST

The fair value of the Group’s investments in bonds issued
in Hong Kong were measured using valuation techniques in
which some significant inputs are not based on observable
market data.

16. BEAREFABSEEECUBEE (®)

Kzt (#)

(vii) RBEBRARAA (RO 1943) REMB R
AFERBERNRETAREXERNERLERFRM
Bk TR - HAENRRELEFZBIE ()R
FARM I BeAR 84 35 69 {8 FRAE AR ¢ K (i) & A 4R K 5
HEMNRGER - RBEE-_Z-_=F=A=+—
BItFERARERAABRGERN (EE) A
475,000,000 T (HE T =ZF=+—
B 1k £ : (34,000,000) % 7T) R IF R BT K
BERARGH B ZGEVBRE R ==
FNA=TH HEREFBEABGLEEFERY
214,000,000 T (R -—ZE - - L A=1+8:
200,000,000 L) °

KEED 105,944,151 0 (ZF = =
Q7,717,941 BT L AR BT AEZEREE 2 W%
EEBF EARNESEERNEMNITREZIENE
fRo

17. BBERAIRZMBEEERE
AEEREERT2EFREZAAEDEAY

FRABETSBBTEE TERBABREZMA
BRMEtE-

2023 2022
—E-= —_=E-

HK$ HK$
BT BT

Investments in financial assets R ARSI AR 2
at amortised cost HBEEERE 113,009,257 154,892,293
Fair value adjustment at inception B AR ERAE 20,758,521 16,529,958
Amortisation of fair value adjustment ANREE K S 3 (9,056,964) (5,658,584)
124,710,814 165,763,667

B ERBEE

Less: Non-current assets

(120,266,539)  (117,955,260)

AARBEE

Included in current assets

4,444,275 47,808,407

No fair value gain or loss at inception is recognised in profit
or loss in the current year.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED
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17. INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AT 17. REBEA AR BEERE (&)
AMORTISED COST (Continued)
Particulars of the principal bonds held as at 30 September RZTEZ=FR-Z-__FNA=+EFEZE
2023 and 2022, are as follows: EEFFBOT
Percentage of Percentage of
fair value of significant ~ fair value of significant
Fair value investments to the investments to the
Place of Acquisition ~ adjustment  Redemption Losson  Expected  Carying Group's investment Group's total Coupon
Name Notes  incorporation cost atinception of bond Interest  modification ~ credit loss amount  Fairvalue portfolio assets Terms rate pa.
EfREL EAREZ
] bl ik DMEEEEEZ DMEEEEEZ
£ K ERALEY A DMEER RER: AE BREE  GHER BiE DE  RREAZESL BRAELAM iR £88%
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
7 i A #n A #n A 7
Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited (i Hong Kong 6.5%
SHERERLA B
-0 42000000 (7,021,948) - 6959300 (1910616) (17108653 22918092 46206587  15% 12% From 31 Qctober 2020 to 30 October 2025
-23z% CRCTEAST-BECRCRETACTA
- 2022 2000000 (7,021.948) - 5M5308  (1910615) (13529616) 24783219 46991088 1% )
-2%-f
Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited (i HongKong 6.5%
SHEEARAT &k
-2 20,000,000 - - 1695078 (1845.005) (11.324670) 8524503 23318870 8% 6% From 28 October 2022 to 27 October 2027
-oRoE CEIIEFACTNRECSCETACT4R
-2 20,000,000 - - 155241 (66825 (3999627) 17276789 211498%5 5% ) From 28 October 2019 to 27 October 2022
it e S 3 il I kit o e
Hao Wen Holdings Limited (i) Cayman lslands 8%
EXERERAA H2Es
-2 42500000 (2587472 - 6012283 (3729854) (12.221340) 29973617 6423 12% 10% From 1 November 2020 to 31 October 2025
-2§zf CEoTEt-F-RECRCAETASE-R
-2 42500000 (2587472 - 4755555 (3729854) (8608,083) 32329246 37479 9% 7%
St ekt
AMCO United Holding Limited" (i) Bermuda
ERARARAT i3
- 2022 30,000,000 - - 200051 G328 (633127) 26302012 26392172 6% 5 From 12 October 2021 to 12 January 2027 105%
R Jalet CR-EATIRECRCLE-A1CR
SEEC Media Group Limited (i) Bermuda 6%
HAEREEERAA [}
-2 20000000 (530249 - 8T - (626569 1575469 16578832 5% & From 18 March 2022 to 17 March 2028
i e CTCEZAT\HEIRI\EZATHE
-2 20000000 (53924%) - - (3869698) 1710027 12550613 3% pi)
[t St
Sincere Smart nternational Limited® (v)  British Virgin
Islands
Sincere Smart nternatonal Limiteg* AERLES
- 2022 18,000,000 - - 1573545 - (3676880) 15896065 19261062 5% ) From 8 January 2020 to 7 January 2023 12%
R Jalet “RIRE-ANREZRCZE-ALR
Lurxu Group Limited (vi)  Cayman Islands 9%
RREEERAT ]
-2 17,000,000 - - 1,003,856 (165)  (4827800) 13175802 14979445 5% & From 31 January 2023 to 31 January 2028
ot Sakt BocE-Ret-BEZRCN\E-A=T-H
-2 17,000,000 - - 1020000 - (3365047) 14634953 17522503 4% ki) From 31 January 2020 to 30 January 2023
e — CRIF5-AIf-REIEIZE-ACTA
China ¢-Wallet Payment Group Limited (vi)  Bermuda 10%
PEEARHEEERAT [
- 2023 0000000 (1528046) (50000000 1,709,089 - (4298826) 10822217 16348417 5% 4% From 8 January 2021 to 7 January 2026
i e T-E-AN\RECECAE-ALR
-2 20000000 (1528,046) (50000000 12395949 - (29852) 11869382 1607659 4% 3%
it ekt
Luxxu Group Limited (vi)  Cayman Islands
BEEEERAA feks
- 2023 5000000 (1,054863) - 5516% - (1429.990) 3066843 4847658 2% 1% From 28 December 2022 to 27 December 2025 %
ot et ZRIEFCACHNARCECRETCACHA
*  The bond was being redeemed during the year. * REFRAFEEMD-
*  The bond was written off during the year. * o REFRAEE M
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17.

130 EHARBRAF

INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AT
AMORTISED COST (Continued)

Notes:

)

(i)

Gold Medal is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and principally engaged in money lending business. It
is a wholly owned subsidiary of WLS Holdings Limited which
is listed on the GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8021). According to the terms of the agreement and
subject to certain conditions, both the Group and Gold Medal
have the early redemption rights as follows:

The Group can request early redemption of the bond at 100%
of the outstanding principal amount and 50% of the outstanding
coupon.

Gold Medal can early redeem the bond at 100% of the total
amount of such bond together with any payment of interests
accrued up to the date of such early redemption. An additional
1% will be given to the Group, together with the outstanding
principal and coupon. HK$4,293,495 interest was received from
Gold Medal for the year ended 30 September 2023.

The interest rate of both bonds have been changed to 6.5%
since 1 February 2022. The modification of interest rate was
considered as non-substantial under quantitative test, in which
the net present value of the cash flow under the new terms
discounted at the original effective interest rate for the remaining
cash flow of the bond period is less than 10%. Therefore, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of the bond is recognised in
profit or loss at the date of modification.

During the year ended 30 September 2023, the bond of HK$20
million has been further extended to 5 years from 28 October
2022 to 27 October 2027. The modification of extension was
considered as non-substantial under quantitative test, in which
the net present value of the cash flow under the new terms
discounted at the original effective interest rate for the remaining
cash flow of the bond period is less than 10%. Therefore, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of the bond is recognised in
profit or loss at the date of modification.

Hao Wen is a company incorporated in Cayman Islands with
limited liability and principally engaged in money lending and
processing and trading of electronic parts. It is listed on the
GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 8019).
There is no provision of terms in the agreement regarding early
redemption rights. HK$3,612,500 interest was received from Hao
Wen for the year ended 30 September 2023.

The interest rate of both bonds have been changed to 8.0%
since 1 January 2022. The modification of interest rate was
considered as non-substantial under quantitative test, in which
the net present value of the cash flow under the new terms
discounted at the original effective interest rate for the remaining
cash flow of the bond period is less than 10%. Therefore, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of the bond is recognised in
profit or loss at the date of modification.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED
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17. INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AT

AMORTISED COST (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

AMCO is a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability and principally engaged in manufacturing and selling
of medical devices and plastic moulding products, providing
construction services, money lending and securities investment.
It is listed on the Main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 630). There is no provision of terms in the
agreement regarding early redemption rights. HK$3,395,746
interest was received for the year ended 30 September 2023.

The interest rate has been changed to 10.5% since 12 October
2021, and the bond was extended to 12 January 2022. Then
the bond further extended 5 years from 12 January 2022 to
12 January 2027 and the interest rate remained at 10.5% per
annum. The modification of interest rate and extension were
considered as non-substantial under quantitative test, in which
the net present value of the cash flow under the new terms
discounted at the original effective interest rate for the remaining
cash flow of the bond period is less than 10%. Therefore, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of the bond is recognised in
profit or loss at the date of modification.

The bond was being redeemed during the year.

SEEC Media Group Limited (stock code: 205) is a company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands and listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. It is engaged in
investment holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the provision of advertising agency services and distribution of
books and magazines in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
and the securities broking business, money lending business and
provision of e-commerce platform services and sales of high-
tech products in Hong Kong. There is no provision of terms in
the agreement regarding early redemption rights. HK$1,200,000
interest was received for the year ended 30 September 2023.

The Group considers the early termination charge on financial
assets represents reasonable compensation for the early
termination, in which these financial assets are classified as
financial assets at amortised cost.

Sincere Smart is a company incorporated in BVI with limited
liability and engaged in investment holding. Its subsidiary is
principally engaged in the application software industry in Hong
Kong and the PRC specialising in information management
solutions offered as SaaS through ERP cloud platform
addressing business requirements of the retail and services
industries. There is no provision of terms in the agreement
regarding early redemption rights. HK$1,080,000 interest was
received from Sincere Smart for the year ended 30 September
2023.

Sincere Smart was dissolved in July 2023, the bond was written
off and set out in the note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

17. BBERFFRZMBEERE (8)

Kzt - (&)

(iii)

(iv)
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17. INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AT
AMORTISED COST (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(vi) Luxxu Group Limited is a company incorporated in Cayman
Islands with limited liability and principally engaged in design
and sales of prestige and high-end watches and accessories;
design, production and assembly of watches for OEM customers;
and manufacture and sales of own brands watches. It is listed on
the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
1327). There is no provision of terms in the agreement regarding
early redemption rights. HK$1,530,000 interest was received for
the year ended 30 September 2023.

The bond has been extended to 5 years from 31 January 2023 to
31 January 2028. The modification of extension was considered
as non-substantial under quantitative test, in which the net
present value of the cash flow under the new terms discounted
at the original effective interest rate for the remaining cash flow
of the bond period is less than 10%. Therefore, the adjustment to
the carrying amount of the bond is recognised in profit or loss at
the date of modification.

(vii) China e-Wallet (stock code:802) and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the business of internet and mobile’s
application and related accessories and trading of security and
biometric products. HK$1,500,000 was received from China
e-Wallet for the year ended 30 September 2023. The Group has
the early redemption rights as follows:

The Group can transfer the bond up to HK$500,000 to any
person not related to the Company. The Group can request early
redemption of the bond up to HK$500,000 any time before the
Maturity Date and from time to time by serving at least 10 days’
prior written notice.

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OVERDRAFTS
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
cash flows as at 30 September 2023 were HK$33,075,167
(2022: HK$16,692,655), carrying interest at prevailing market
rates.

Overdrafts carry interest at market rate at 20.3% (2022:
16.0%).

132 E#AIRAERAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED
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19.

20.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 19. HthEENRIERESEH
2023 2022
—E=-= T —F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Margin payables JET FF R FRIA 21,771,165 15,876,562
Accruals EETER 3,236,752 4,157,966
25,007,917 20,034,528

Margin payables bear interest rates ranged from 8% to 9.25%
(2022: 8% to 15.25%) per annum for the year. The margin
payables are secured by financial assets at FVTPL, repayable
on demand and are guaranteed by the Company on behalf of
a subsidiary.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Company issued 100% of the principal amount of the
Convertible bonds at HK$21,000,000 on 26 September 2022
(after trading hours). The convertible bonds are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. The bonds entitle the holders to convert
them into ordinary shares of the Company at any time
between the date of issue of the bonds and their settlement
date on the second anniversary of the date of issue of the
Convertible bonds at a conversion price of HK$0.25 per
conversion share.

The Convertible Bonds are freely transferable by the
convertible bonds holder(s) in whole amounts or multiples
of units of principal amount of the Minimum Denomination
to any person, provided that no transfer of the Convertible
Bonds to any connected person.

The Company shall be entitled to redeem the Convertible
bonds at 102% of the face value of the Convertible bonds
prior to the Maturity Date and at 100% of the face value of
the Convertible bonds on the Maturity Date.

20.

RAFE  ENFFREFRIBZRFNEN F8EZE9.25
BE(ZZ % :8BE1525F st B - BN TR
RETHEARBABRERIE W HEEFER
HRBREXKEETHARFRE—HHNBAF
EHER -

AR ES

KRR ZEZ—_FNAZ+ B (X FFEEE)
17100% AR E % - A £ 58 521,000,000
oA BMREHEB LA E-BFETEREA
EARESFETAZEEER (TERESETA
MWES 2 B)BERIRBRESRRKRH0.25
B RBARRNG LB -

THREFIEKEREASHE I 2 REHA
MEESHEABRERTEMNAL TG
AEMBEEATERETRRES -

ANAQTF ERHERLNE H A A% A AR &5 mEE 0
102% K& 1A 5 B B 3% ] 3% (& 25 B £9100% f&
O] A] #A BR (& 55 o
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20. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 20. TRRES (&)

In the event that the Company gives notice of redemption and
receives a notice of conversion under the Convertible bonds
on the same date (regardless of the time), the notice of
redemption shall take priority against the notice of conversion.

The holders of the Convertible Bonds may not early redeem
the Convertible Bonds in any event.

Interest of 1.5% will be paid annually up until the maturity or
redemption date.

AR TRREB (T E) T ER &M &K
AR ESRTE T 2 GE A - Bl PATE @38 A 5
P4 8 R e ©

MR ERFE AREMERT SR FEE A

B E s

BFEBXMBEZANE BEEZNHNERBHA
ko

At initial recognition, the convertible bonds contain three RUEHERE AIRRESFEREERIT S EF
components, equity component, debt component and A RTELELY =@M - Al RRES 2 #
derivative component. The equity component of the convertible HROHEBBERTETAELSHFHRY - E= I
bonds was separated from the liability and derivative DRERAN2IN R IAIRRESERHEE] BB
component. The equity element is presented in equity heading MARTET R (REREEREERE) B VHIE
“convertible bonds equity reserve”. The debt component and NABEAE - BHEBOZEENERBITAE 5T
derivative (the early redemption options) component initially ETEIHSZRANENE AAEZHRIERE
measured at fair value. The effective interest rate of the debt e
component is 17.1%. The derivative component is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.
The movement of the debt and derivative components of the AEENBMRESFNEBRITELESLH 2 &
convertible bonds for the year is set out as below: Bl
Derivative Debt
component component
FTETAIS BEHBD
HK$ HK$
BT BT
As at 1 October 2021 R-ZEZ—F+A—H - -
Issuance of convertible bonds BITA MR E S 3,396,971 15,774,511
Interest charge AEBER - 36,897
Loss arising on changes of fair value AREEZHELENER (180,672) =
As at 30 September 2022 and RZZEZZFNA=1+HEK
1 October 2022 —_E-_—_%+H—H 3,216,299 15,811,408
Interest charge FEEA - 2,699,798
Loss arising on changes of fair value AR EEEELERERE (2,415,276) =
As at 30 September 2023 R—_ZE_=FhA=+H 801,023 18,511,206
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21. SHARE CAPITAL 21. B
Number of
ordinary shares
Note of HK$0.25 each Share Capital
BREE
0.258 T2
Wizt EEREA [
HK$
AT
Authorised: EE:
At 1 October 2021, 30 September 2022, RZZ-_—%+F—B —T-_—FhAA=+H"
1 October 2022 and 30 September 2023 —ZZ_Ff+A-AR=ZE==FNAA=1H 800,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 October 2021 RZE-_—%+A—AH 343,238,249 85,809,562
Exercise of share options TR R 8,250,000 2,062,500
Placing of new shares B EF AR (a) 68,640,000 17,160,000
At 30 September 2022, 1 October 2022 RZBEZZFAA=+H ZE-_=_F+A—-HK
and 30 September 2023 —E-_=FHNA=1H 420,128,249 105,032,062
Note: Hiat -

(@) On 4 October 2021, the Company and China Prospect Securities
Limited entered into the placing agreement to issue and allot a
maximum of 68,640,000 placing shares at a price of HK$0.25
per placing share (the “Placing”). The Placing was completed
and fully subscribed on 25 October 2021. The gross proceeds
from the Placing amounted to approximately HK$17,160,000
and related directly attributable expenses were approximately
HK$258,700. Please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 4 October 2021 and 25 October 2021 for further details.

22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The existing share option scheme of the Company was
approved and adopted by shareholders’ resolution at the
annual general meeting held on 10 December 2013 (the
“Option Scheme”), unless otherwise cancelled or amended
subject to resolution passed at general meeting of the
Company the Option Scheme will remain in force for ten
years from 10 December 2013. As at 30 September 2022,
the remaining life of the Option Scheme was approximately
3 months. Detail of the Option Scheme are disclosed in the
Report of the Directors.

22,

(@ MR-E-—F+ANB ARAEPBRREES
ERARMNERE s AESRESK7HD0.25%
JL K {8 4% 2 77 I Fid 3% 5 %68,640,0008% A & A% 15
((BEEEHE]) RZE_—F+AZ+HHE B
EEBEOEALEEERE -RESHEMEHE
4B EE4 A17,160,00078 T AE B E R 4
/258,700 Lo — A A BEHLMARTBHA
- —F+AWNBE=-ZE-_—F+HA=-+HH

PENED

BRESE

ARBZBRERBEFEENR_F—=F1+_-A
THEETZERBFAE LERRRBRMLER
Ry ([MBRERT ) RIESTTRARRBIRA
TLBEBRARTHIER  BRIBRESEH
B-E—=f+_AtTHEXATFRA—EBEBR
N\_EBE_FAA=TH BREFEHRERSE
HOR=A EHRBREFENFEIANES

WG
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22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

22. BRESE (®)

Share options granted during the year ended

30 September 2022

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Capital VC Limited (the “Company”) announces that on
16 February 2022 (the “Date of Grant”) and 9 March 2022
(the “Date of Grant for Director — Share Options”), the
Company granted two share options which are (i) a total of
25,200,000 share options (the “Share Options”) and (ii) a total
of 8,400,000 share option (the “Director — Share Options”)
to certain Directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Grantees”), in accordance
with the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
of the Company adopted on 10 December 2013, subject to
acceptance by the Grantees.

(i) Total of 25,200,000 share options

BE-_E-_—_FhABA=1+HLEEEHZ
B
BHMERAERAR([A2ARNES([EE])E
(g )sh R-TE-_—_F-_A+,B (%
HEHDE-ZE__F=ZANB([E5-BER
EEHBH]) ARRBREBEARRAR-ZZ—=F
T A+ ERMOERESS ([ERESE])
MARRIREMNBARZETESRIEES (5
[JER A L) W I8 B8 B 4 - (i) & $£25,200,000
BB RE ([BBRLHE ] ) I (i) & $£8,400,00017 8 A%
((EE-BRE]) HEAFERAZR.

(i) & #25200,00015 % 5% &

The Share Options entitle the Grantees to subscribe for
a total of 25,200,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.275
each in the capital of the Company (the “Share(s)”).
Details of the Share Options are set out below:

The fair value of the share options granted on
16 February 2022, the Date of Grant, determined using
the Binomial Pricing Model, was HK$2,995,757. The key
inputs into the Binomial Pricing Model are as follows:

Date of Grant:
B H A

Exercise price of Share Options
granted:

RHBRERITEE

Number of Share Options granted:

RHOBRENEE

Close price of the Shares on the
Date of Grant:
REH B E R AR () Wi (B

Validity period of the Share Options
granted:

BB AR

136 E#EIRAERAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED

BREE TERAZRBARAREA+TE
B0.2758 T 2 M EBMR (B ]) A H
25,200,000/ 2 B 7| - 5 BB AR FEIB
FaAR

FHOBREAR-_ZSZ-_—_F£-A+x8 (&
HHEHE) ZAREFR-EAETEEREE
52,995,757 L —BATEERANETEE
ABBRIAT

16 February 2022
—E-—#-A+XH

HK$0.275 per Share (which is higher than: (i) the closing price of HK$0.265
per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the Date of Grant; (ii) the average closing price of HK$0.264
per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the Date of
Grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share i.e. HK$0.250)
BREGH0.275F T (AR TIEE: () RHONEL AR BIMBELENE AR
B3 P2 By U (B B AR0.265% 7T ¢ (i) AR 0 /0 B4 3% ) A B A (& 3% B RO B
P E R & B R E R P FIE) 1 YT B A%0.26478 T 0 K (iii) Bk {7 EIE - B
0.2507% 7T)

25,200,000 Share Options (each Share Option will entitle the holder of the
Share Option to subscribe for one new Share)

25,200,00017 fE IR 1 (5 — 0 B AR 1S I T BB AR 35 B A R IE — IRFT ik (p 9 4
)

HK$0.265 per Share

TR 17 0.2657 7T

From 16 February 2022 to 15 February 2025, both days inclusive

BA-ZE-——&#-A+AABE-ZE-_R&-_A+HAB (BEERERX)



22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Share options granted during the year ended

30 September 2022 (Continued)

(i) Total of 25,200,000 share options (Continued)
Exercise period of the Share Options

granted:

BB TTEE

Consideration for the grant:

BRHARE:

Expected volatility:
& B i

Expected dividend yield:
TEHIMR B X

Risk-free rate:

Vesting condition:
55 B 15 A

(ii) Total of 8,400,000 share options

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

22, BREE (|
BE-_ZF-_—_FhAA=1THLEFERHEZ
B R (@)
(i) & #25,200,00017 /8 IR #& (&)

From 16 February 2022 to 15 February 2025, both days inclusive

B-E-—F-_A+~HBE-ZE-_AF-_A+HA (BEERERX)

HK$1.00 to be paid by each Grantee upon acceptance of the Share Options
1 R 5 T IR A PO A B AR B X2 11,0078 T

90.884%
90.884%

0%
0%

1.215%
1.215%

None
Fiid

7N

(i) 2 8,400,000 B8 IR &

The Director — Share Options entitle the Grantees to
subscribe for a total of 8,400,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.251 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Share(s)”). Details of the Director — Share Options are
set out below:

The fair value of the share options granted on 9 March
2022, the Date of Grant for Director — Share Options,
determined using the Binomial Pricing Model, was
HK$1,101,614. The key inputs into the Binomial Pricing

EE-BRERTERARBARAKAR
FER251B Tz ERE ([ ]) A H
8,400,000/ 2 | - B RE = — IR
BT :

RENERENR-_ZE-_F=ANB (E5—
BRERHBE) 2 AABEFER_BATE
BAEEA1,101,6148 L —BRAEEERER
WEBHASENAT :

Model are as follows:

Date of Grant for Director
— Share Options:

EE-BEBRERDBE:

Exercise price of Director
— Share Options granted:

BROEFE-BRENITEE:

9 March 2022
—E-_—F#=AANH

HK$0.251 per Share (which is the highest of: (i) the closing price of
HK$0.250 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the Date of Grant; (ii) the average closing price of
HK$0.251 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the Date of
Grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share i.e. HK$0.250)
FRRMH0.251F T (R TIHEEE : (i) RO L A EBRERME LSS A R
B3R P58 YT B & A%0.25078 7T ¢ (i) A 0 74 B E IR i B 5 A T { = 5= H 70 B
PR E e & B R E 2 P51 E 15 U T (B AR0.25178 Tt ¢ K (iii) Ak 3 EME - B
0.250/% 7T)

Annual Report 2022/23 3% 137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 22. BERESE ()

Share options granted during the year ended BE-ZTE-_—_FhA=1tHLFERHZ

30 September 2022 (Continued) BB RE (@)

(ii) Total of 8,400,000 share options (Continued) (ii) & #8,400,00017 F5 i 1 (&)
Number of Director — Share Options 8,400,000 Share Options (each Share Option will entitle the holder of the

granted: Share Option to subscribe for one new Share)

REEE-BRENHAE 8,400,0001) A (&5 — 10 B ARE S IE T BB IR 45 B AR BE — IR iR 0 eV kR )
Close price of the Shares on the HK$0.25 per Share

Date of Grant for Director
— Share Options:

MREF-BRERD AN B 170.25/%8 7T
B Ay W T (8
Validity period of the Director From 9 March 2022 to 8 March 2025, both days inclusive
— Share Options granted:
REESE - BRENE W BEZE-__F=ZANBE-_Z-_AF=A/\B (BEHEEWX)
Exercise period of the Director From 9 March 2022 to 8 March 2025, both days inclusive
— Share Options granted:
RHEF-BRENTES: BT _F=ANRAEZE_Z_RF=ANB(BEEEMX)
Consideration for the grant: HK$1.00 to be paid by each Grantee upon acceptance of the Share Options
RHERE: 1 B B IR A P AR AR I 2 11,0008 T
Expected volatility: 90.459%
T HA R 0 - 90.459%
Expected dividend yield: 0%
AR B 0%
Risk-free rate: 1.300%
[ ez A1) & - 1.300%
Vesting condition: None
55 B IR i
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical FEAEEODERALE—EFEART ZRH
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous B BT REMEE EXMKAERE
1 year. The expected life used in the model has been HER T TEZE TERFIRTAERZE
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the BIRTEEREMTAE-

effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.
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22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 22, BRETE (#)

Share options granted during the year ended

30 September 2021

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Capital VC Limited (the “Company”) announces that on
16 February 2021 (the “Date of Grant”), the Company granted
a total of 27,440,000 share options (the “Share Options”)
to certain Directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Grantees”), in accordance
with the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
of the Company adopted on 10 December 2013, subject to
acceptance by the Grantees. The Share Options entitle the
Grantees to subscribe for a total of 27,440,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.25 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Share(s)”). Details of the Share Options are set out below:

The fair value of the share options granted on 16 February
2021, the Date of Grant, determined using the Binomial
Pricing Model, was HK$2,802,996. The key inputs into the
Binomial Pricing Model are as follows:

BE-ZE--FhAA=THLEFERHZEBRE

BHEAEERAR([ARRES([EF)])
e([gxg)eh R_TE-—F-F+XH
([BEBH])  ARRBREBEARANZE—=F
+TZ AT ARAMERES ([ERETE])
MARRAREMNBRAGIZETESZREES (57
[ER AT A $£27,440,00017 B8 B4 ([ 88 A%
) WARERAEM-BRERTERAA
REARARAFFRE(E.25B L2 LB
([Pt ))& $£27,440,0000% 2 #EF) - B AR HEFE 15
E N

BEEMBERERA-_Z-_—F_A+/,8 (&
PRSI 2AABEER_EATEERET A
2,802,996 7L —IHAEEBRE N E E 8@ AZIK
I

Date of Grant : 16 February 2021
B HEE: T A+XH

Exercise price of Share Options granted:  HK$0.25 per Share (which is the highest of: (i) the closing price of HK$0.23
per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the Date of Grant; (ii) the average closing price of HK$0.236
per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the Date of
Grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share i.e. HK$0.25)

BRBRM0.25BT (A TI&REE: (\RONBZEAPRBIAMELNET AR
BRAFINKTEFR02IB T (I ROHNREER L BHAT DAL XBERBR
FREE e E B BRI F YT E G HR0.236/8 7T ¢ K (iii) A {7 E & * £10.25

L)

BREBRENTTEE:

Number of Share Options granted: 27,440,000 Share Options (each Share Option will entitle the holder of the
Share Option to subscribe for one new Share)
27,440,00017 B IR 7 (B — 0 B ARSI T B AR B A RE — IR IR () By 4

)

REBRENEE

Close price of the Shares
on the Date of Grant:

R E AR RO KT IE

HK$0.23 per Share
TR 0.237E T
Validity period of the Share Options

granted:

BB RN R B —F-A+"BEZZT-_NF_A+HH (BEEEMX)

From 16 February 2021 to 15 February 2024, both days inclusive
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22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Share options granted during the year ended

22. BRAESTE (®)
BE-—E-_—HFhA=1+tHLEEEH>

30 September 2021 (Continued) BB IR RE (@)

Exercise period of the Share Options From 16 February 2021 to 15 February 2024, both days inclusive
granted:

RO ITEE: BE-Z-—F-_A+ABE-Z-_WNF_A+HA (BEFEEEMX)

Consideration for the grant: HK$1.00 to paid by each Grantee upon acceptance of the Share Options

RHERE: 1 5 T IR A PR AR B AR B 2 11,0078 7T

Expected volatility: 87.667%

8 HY R R 87.667%

Expected dividend yield: 0%

AR S 0%

Risk-free rate: 0.189%

B A 0.189%

Vesting condition: None

5 & MG A fiis

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 1
year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.
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For the year ended 30 September 2023 B2 - Z-=FhA=1+HILFE

22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Details of the share options granted and summary of

movements of the outstanding share options for the year

22. BRESTE (®)

RIBEEESNEE

Z_=FNA=+HIt

=

FERBZEBREFBERERTEBREZZ B

ended 30 September 2023 under the Share Option Scheme BMEHH 0T
are as follow:
Number of
Number of Number of Number of options held
options held pti pti as at
Exercise as at granted during  exercised during 30 September
Category Date of Grant Price Option Period 1 October 2022 the Year the Year 2023
R-BZZf RZB==f
t+A-H AEERRL FEERTR AA=+A
¥ REBH e BRESR FrisBRERE ZEREHE ZBRE®E  FBBREYR
Director
&=
Mr. Kong Fanpeng 16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from date of grant 3,430,000 - - 3,430,000
LABEE ZTZ-FZA+XB 0251 BRI BEE=F
9 March 2022 HK$0.251 Three years from date of grant 4,200,000 - - 4,200,000
ZEZZF=FAA 0.2517% 7T BRI BHE=F
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee 16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from date of grant 3,430,000 - - 3,430,000
BEZTAE “E--fZR+XH 0.25/% 7T ARLBHE=F
9 March 2022 HK$0.251 Three years from date of grant 4,200,000 - - 4,200,000
ZZ-Z%ZAAnA 025157 EREBBRE=F
Employee 16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from date of grant 20,580,000 - - 20,580,000
k8 ZTZ-F5ZA+XB 025%1 BREBEE=F
16 February 2022 HK$0.275 Three years from date of grant 25,200,000 - - 25,200,000
- Sk ez b W2 = 0.275% 7T ARILBHE=F
Total
@t 61,040,000 - - 61,040,000
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22. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

22. BRESE (®)

The following table discloses movements of the Share Option THREBBEREFIRBEE_ZS__FAA=ZT
Scheme for the year ended 30 September 2022: HIEFEMEE):
Number of
Number of Number of Number of options held
options held options options as at
Exercise as at granted during  exercised during 30 September
Category Date of Grant Price Option Period 1 October 2021 the Year the Year 2022
RZ-B=-F RZB=ZF
tE-H FEERRE KEERTHR hA=+A
Y] REAH %R BREAR FisBREHR ZBREHE ZBREHA FsBRERR
Director
gz
Mr. Kong Fanpeng 13 February 2020 HK$0.25* Two years from date of grant 2,750,000 - (2,750,000) -
AR ESE —Z-ZF-A+=H 0.25 L EREBBEME
16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from date of grant 3,430,000 - - 3,430,000
ZEZ-FZA+RH 0.25% 7T BERHBER=F
9 March 2022 HK$0.251 Three years from date of grant - 4,200,000 - 4,200,000
—EZZ%=ANR 02514 T BRILBHE=F
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee 13 February 2020 HK$0.25* Two years from date of grant 2,750,000 - (2,750,000) -
RESRE ZT-TE-ATZH 0.25 L EREBBEME
16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from date of grant 3,430,000 - - 3,430,000
“E--E2ATRE 025%% EREABR=F
9 March 2022 HK$0.251 Three years from date of grant - 4,200,000 - 4,200,000
—EZZ%=ANR 02514 T BRILBHE=F
Employee 13 February 2020 HK$0.25* Two years from date of grant 2,750,000 - (2,750,000) -
E& “Z-ZF-A+=H 0.2508 L EREBBEME
16 February 2021 HK$0.25 Three years from date of grant 20,580,000 - - 20,580,000
“E--FZATRBE 025%% EREABRE=F
16 February 2022 HK$0.275 Three years from date of grant - 25,200,000 - 25,200,000
ZE-ZFZR+XH 0.275% T BRILBHE=F
Total
a5t 35,690,000 33,600,000 (8,250,000) 61,040,000

All share options granted on 13 February 2020 were adjusted,

based on the share consolidation for every ten (10) issued and

unissued then existing shares were consolidated into one (1)

consolidated shares in effect on 14 July 2020, and the exercise

price of the share options upon share consolidation in effect
changed to HK$0.25.
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23.

24,

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on the
net asset value of the Group as at 30 September 2023 of
HK$319,850,847 (2022: HK$468,910,483) and on the number
of 420,128,249 ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each in issue as
at 30 September 2023 (2022: 420,128,249 ordinary shares of
HK$0.25 each).

On 13 October 2023, the Company published an announcement
titled “Net Asset Value” (the “NAV Announcement”), in which
the net asset value per share of the Company as at 30
September 2023 was stated as HK$0.8735. The decrease of
net asset value per share of the Company as at 30 September
2023 from HK$0.8735 based on the NAV Announcement to
HK$0.76 based on these consolidated financial statements is
principally due to the valuation works on the expected credit
loss on financial assets at amortised cost, net of reversal
of HK$9,584,454, the expected credit loss on deposits and
other receivables, net of reversal of HK$3,297,900, loss on
extinguishment of investments in financial assets at amortised
costs of HK$6,784,801 and loss on written off of investments
in financial assets at amortised cost of HK$11,795,199, which
were prepared by independent valuer, yet to be completed on
the date of the NAV Announcement.

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS
(a) Related parties transactions

23.

24,

BREEFE
BEREEFEDBREAEER-_ZT=_=F1A
Z+HBZBESE319,850,847 Bt (T ==
% :468,9104838 L) MR ZFEZ_=F A=+
H 2420,128,249/% & i% 1 {50.25/8 7T 2 B %17
LER (—F = —4F 420,128,249 B = &
0258 T2 LMR)FHH -

RZZEZ=F+A+=HB AQaTEEZELIE
EFEINAE ([EEFERE]) Bt B
TZ=FNA=Z1+TH ARRERBHZEETF
%) 5087358 T - R-_E-_=FHLA=+H"
RRABEBRBRH 2 EEFEREEFERASH
51| #90.87357%8 7Ll D B AR A B IS & A A A
0.76 8L T EHRMIZEER AR UK E
EEBEEEE (MR ER) 9,584,454 % 7T -
R REMENKIE 2 BEHEEEE (NRER)
3,297,900/ 7T - B EIREESE K AR B BR 2 B TS B &
& 7 [F5186,784,8017% T N Ml 85 45 8 8 Ak A 7|
Rz BEERE 2 EE11,795,1997% 7T M B
By HEMRENGEIEREEFEASHE

HEATRBEXRS

(a) BEALTRS

In addition to those disclosed in other sections of the BREGEVBRREAMEGNCSEREEIN
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into RAFEREBREBAEATET IS
the following transactions with connected parties during alia:
the year:
2023 2022
—E-= T
Note HK$ HK$
M aF BT B TT
Evergrande Securities (Hong Kong) BEREH (BEB)BRAF
Limited (“ESL”) (MEXREF])
— Investment management fee paid —EfNREETEE (i) 600,000 600,000
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24. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(a) Related parties transactions (Continued)

Note:

(i) ESL is an investment manager of the Company and
considered as a connected person under 14A.08 of
Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to an investment
management agreement (“‘ESL Agreement”) dated
30 November 2020 entered into between the Company and
ESL, ESL agreed to provide the Company with investment
management services for an initial term of three years
commencing on 8 December 2020. Pursuant to the terms
of ESL Agreement, the monthly investment advisory fee is
HK$50,000.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors, who are also members of
key management, during the year ended 30 September
2023 and 2022 was as follows:

24, HEATRBEXRS (#)

(a) AEAEXRS (&)

Bat

(i) EABLHAARAZEEAEEA WIRELE
TR B FE21EF14A.086 R A — B REE
AT - RIBEAQABEEAZSITI A A
ToEFE+-A-+HRZEEEREBE ([E
AEHWE]) BEABLEREA_Z-ZF
T ANARAARQREEEEEERS
MEEHRAE=F - RIBEXESWE K
T A1 A B % /50,0008 7T

(b) FEEBANEBZHE

REEZT-_=FR_FT__FNLA=1+
ALFE REIEERTEEEERKEZA
BrzMaemT:

2023 2022

—E_= —_E_F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Short-term benefits 5 HR 4@ A 1,380,000 1,380,000
Post-employment benefits B 12 18 A - 1,200
Share-based payment AR 17 B B/ 2 SR = 1,101,614
1,380,000 2,482,814

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors,
the above related party transactions were entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business
on normal commercial terms and were in accordance
with the terms of the arrangements governing the
transactions that were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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25. PLEDGED OF ASSETS 25. EEEHR
As at the year end, the Group had pledged the following RER AEBDETPTINEEIERENFRK
assets to secure the margin payables: 182 R
2023 2022
—_E_-= —_E-
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEANESRIEZHBEE 105,944,151 97,717,941
26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 26. RIARBRGFE
The Group operates a defined contribution MPF Scheme AEEBRBEARGEAESAEEI AEEKL2H
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for BEeECEER Y —HTHHEREESFE -
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF HATDBBEEEZEAF S CADHAE AR
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of BB E 2 HAURENFEER AR -4
the employee’s basic salaries and are charged to profit or BerglzEER —EBYERESREA B
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules SEEENDFHERE - NEEZEFHRN MR
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are BeEHFIBF UG EEME -
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of RiFaEmRx MR 24K A101,898F T (ZF
profit or loss of HK$101,898 (2022: HK$82,349) represents T 82,3498 L) IE AL BB A B FE 1
contributions payable to the schemes by the Group in respect ZERTEIEA 2R

of the current financial year.
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27. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company as

at 30 September 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Class of
Name shares held
£ PR3 8 5
Concolor Holdings Limited Ordinary
Concolor Holdings Limited LA
Ethnocentric Investment Limited Ordinary
Ethnocentric Investment Limited & i@ f%
Like Capital Limited Ordinary
EEARERAT R
Huge Energy Holdings Limited ~ Ordinary
RERKRER AT LRk
Smart Able Holdings Limited Ordinary
BRERARAT Eidik

Extra One Investments Limited* Ordinary

Extra One Investments Limited* & 3@k

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations
MR BT
REXBE

BVI/Hong Kong
RERZES/BH

BVI/Hong Kong
RERZES/BH

Hong Kong

BE

BVI/Hong Kong
KBRAEE/BE

BVI/Hong Kong
KBRAEE/BE

BVI/Hong Kong
KBRAEE/BE

*  The subsidiary was dissolved on 4 July 2023

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.
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27. T EM B QA
RZBEZ=FR T _FALA=+H XRQF
Az TEWB AR ZFBNT:

Issued share Percentage of

and fully paid equity attributable to
share capital the Company Principal activities
BRTRH ADRELRL
RBZKRE RES 2L TEER
Directly Indirectly
E# i #%
US$1 100% - Investment holding
1ETT 100% - RERER
US$1 100% — Investment holding
1ETT 100% - RERER
HK$3 - 100% Investments of listed
securities, unlisted
securities and unlisted
bonds in Hong Kong
3BT - 100% REMNEBZ LHES
FEEMBESNELD
&%
US$1 100% - Investment holding
(E 100% - REEKR
US$1 100% - Investment holding
1ET 100% - REEKR
US$1 - - Investment holding
17T - - REER

* MBRARER-Z_=F+AMAMHA-

ERIHARREERAIENEAREEE X
BEZASENB AR -EXZR AT HEMKE

ARG ELEERERBTE
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28.

29.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior period.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
included margin payables as disclosed in Note 19, convertible
bonds as disclosed in Note 20 and equity attributable to
equity holder of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
payment of dividends, issue of debentures, new share issue

28.

EXEmER
AREEREEAARRARE N E R
BRI - B R (6 7 R 2 5 24 L
BB T B A - AR BB R A
R

5 BE 5
SEsi)

i
= B

AEBEZEARBRERR (BENWM 19K E
Z FE A FF R FROR R R BT 209 BE 2 FT R AR B %)
RARRBESAEARE#EZ (BRECETRA
K ftt) o

RRBEEEFRINERNRE -HETRAE
EXSEREARARBZRBRNERZ HERAR -
REEEZEH AEESEBRNKRE BT
Br BITHREBORONTFEEEREARR
B

and share buy-back.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Financial instruments

(i) Categories of financial instruments

29. @ T R

(a) @I A

() 2MIAZHHE

2023 2022
—E—-= —E - —4F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets MKEEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARBEFABRERZHBEE 180,597,142 247,560,902
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKKINRZUBKEE
Investments in financial assets 2 8 5 A AN 51 BR
at amortised cost CHEEERE 124,710,814 165,763,667
Other receivables H{th e 5K IE 39,645,743 80,554,818
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEEY 33,075,167 16,692,655
197,431,724 263,011,140
378,028,866 510,572,042
Financial liabilities g S =R
Financial liabilities R AT BR
at amortised cost ZHKaE
Other payables H fh FE A FRE 25,007,917 20,034,528
Overdrafts BEX 14,813,705 6,079,340
Convertible bonds A AR & 55 18,511,206 15,811,408
58,332,828 41,925,276
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
financial assets at FVTPL, investments in financial
assets at amortised cost, other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, other payables and
convertible bonds. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, other
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are substantially denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
Accordingly, the management considers the foreign
exchange risk to the Group is not significant.

Other price risk

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL (2022: financial
assets at FVTPL) are measured at fair value at end of
the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
security price risk. Management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
reporting date.
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29. TRT A (@)
(a) €MI A (#\)
(iy MBEBREREBEZRBER

AEBZFESHIABRERARE
FRABREE WK EE WHERA
SRR B ERE B EUWFRR
RehBReEEY HMRERNFEBERA
BREF - ZFETRIAZFREEIRSE
BZHERE 2SR TARABZR
REEmERER(E¥ER- HHWER
R kMExERE) EERBRMREDE
TR -

TXEINMAREZERBRZBEE
BEEENEEZSRRIAEREE
AR RBUEE B 1

ExmERE
AEBZMBEERMFABBRBRE Y N
BLtE-El EEERRAEE AL
ZONER R I NEK -

Rt B 1% /7 B

AEBZBEAAEFABRSREZHKE
E(ZE__F:RBoABEFARaREZ
MBEE)RENBRERRZ AR EBEFE
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Other price risk (Continued)

In respect of financial assets at FVTPL (2022: financial
assets at FVTPL), the following table demonstrates the
impact on loss after tax, other comprehensive income

=FNA=ZTRALFE

29. @@ T A (#)
(a) =M I A (4)

Bt B 1% /7 B% ()

=

BRERARBEFABEZRBE MEEENS (=
FRAABEFABRRIECVEE
E) TRERMERLA TE% (ZF

and equity if the price had been 5% (2022: 5%) higher/ TZF:5%) HEREBEEBE Hitt2E K
lower. m MRz B -
Carrying Decrease/
amount of increase Increase/
equity/debt in loss decrease in
investments after tax equity
BRA & BB RER IR 2
REZIRHEE w8 b0 #m, wL
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT Vi- v Vi- v
2023 —EC-=
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARBEFAEREEZ
MEEE
— listed securities — &S 179,796,119 7,506,488 7,506,488
Carrying Decrease/
amount of increase Increase/
equity/debt in loss decrease in
investments after tax equity
WA, &7 BBz ER AR AR
KREZEEE A HE N B,
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
2022 —E=-=
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAnE ABRREZ
s EE
— unlisted securities —JFLETHES 2,147,000 89,637 89,637
— listed securities — &5 242,197,603 10,111,750 10,111,750
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29. @@ T A (#)
(a) =M I A (4)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Other price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated
losses) and other components of consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the changes in the market
price or other relevant risk variables had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk for
changes in market interest rates through its investments
in debt securities. The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable rate bank
balances, margin receivables and payables. The Group
aims at keeping borrowings at variable rates. The Group
manages its interest rate exposures by assessing
the potential impact arising from any interest rate
movements based on interest rate level and outlook. The
management will review the interest rates and ensure
they are within reasonable range.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. €@ T A (@®)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued) (a) £ET A (&)
Interest rate risk (Continued) FIE R (&)
The following table indicates the instantaneous change T%E‘Jﬂ_'\$§%E’\]%ﬁ%éﬂé(&%%ﬂ%ﬁ)
in the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated losses) AMASERBERRAILERE R
that would arise if to which the Group has significant HAERRZ B RIS EmEEBIREE) (TEX
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed BRTBEEMBERESEAE) o
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.
Sensitivity analysis HREE ST
2023 2022
—E-=E “E-CF
Increase/(decrease) Loss after tax Increase/(decrease) Loss after tax
in market  and accumulated in market and accumulated
interest rate losses interest rate losses
TG F % BH&ER 5 ¥ % RiieEE
E#/(FH) REHER A/ (TH) REFHER
HKS$ HK$
BT B
Margin receivables JEY R 8 0.5% 129 0.5% 54,784
-0.5% (129) 05% (54,784)
Margin payables ENHFRIE 0.5% 90,895 0.5% 66,285
-0.5% (90,895) 05% (66,285)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table R OMHERRBEAEESEEDY
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects BREEEERREMINEGEZE (URE
on each of the Group entities’ loss after tax and equity HANAMERZESEN SR T AT ENE
measured by respective financial instruments on interest 23R P Re iR -
rate at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in BREDMBIMNENEHERBREN
interest rates had been applied to re-measure those AEAREMBATRBRENREASH
financial instruments held by the Group which expose HEFERENEMT A -DfTEEER-"T
the Group to interest rate risk at the end of the reporting ZZF MR -

period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2022.
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29. @@ T A (#)
(a) =M I A (4)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued) I KB (A
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) HRE T ()

As 30 September 2023 and 2022, some interest-bearing
other receivables are bore at fixed interest rate.
Management considers the exposure to the changes in
market interest rate should not be materially enough to
cause adverse financial effect on the Group’s position.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations as at 30 September 2023 and 2022 in relation
to each class of financial assets is the carrying amount
of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has a
systematic internal credit management policy, which
includes both credit and risk management and collection
management.

Before placing an investment or an advance to a
counterparty, the Group conducts an credit risk
assessment on each of the counterparty, including
assessing the potential credit quality, defining credit
limits and calculating the interest rate by considering
the underlying financial risks. The Group subsequently
performs on-going review on the recoverable amount
of each individual financial assets at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate derecognition
process are made for any irrecoverable amounts and
impairment loss under ECL model is recognised for
future potential loss.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
The Group uses the following benchmarks to perform

29. €T A (&)

(a) =M I A (4)
EEmE (&)
AEBERATEEETEMEERER

internal credit risk grading and impairment assessment

under ECL model:

Level of credit risk Benchmarks

EERKF HE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does
not have any past-due amounts

16X [ B RSGEFNENRRK R LA EMBHFIE

Watch list The counterparty has amounts past-due but is
continuously settling after due date and with
continuous business transactions with the Group

BResE ZELHDAH MXSUFRINPERFEEER I
HAEESEETERRS

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition through information
developed internally or externally resources while the
counterparty is with continuous business transactions
with the Group

AJ &t FHRAEBEK 2 BRI SINBER - FEERR B PR
RIeBELN BRXHUFRAEEFEETERR
2

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired

&8 EEBRETNEEDREFEERAE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

v BEBETEBABAREN T BRNEL RSB &

EFERBEREATKREEBHRIEA

XET 2 AMEERRFRLRETG :

ECL assessment requirement

EHEEERIGHER
12-month ECL
128 A B EE E A 18

12-month ECL

1218 AR MEE B8

Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

EHRMEERE-YEEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired

2HRBESEFE-FERE

Amount is written off

i $H A B IR
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

29. €@ T

A (&)

(a) £MIA (@)
EERE (&)

Gross carrying amount

BHAHE

External credit  Internal credit 12-month or

Notes rating rating Lifetime ECL 2023 2022
12(8 A 52 8

W#  OEBEETR  RBEETR EHEERE ZEC-=ZF —E-CfF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Investments in financial asset at REBEKAGEY 17 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 112,469,534 149,207,026
amortised cost HBEERE TER EREE 12@REHREEER

N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL 68,225,383 62,956,290
@A A5 - not credit-impaired
2HEBEERE
-UEREEREA

Amounts receivables HERE 2z B FE 15 N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 55,621,876 91,058,646
on disposal of investments TiEA BB —credit-impaired
2HEHEEES
—EERE

N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 15,666,667 17,200,000
AR KRR 12@BABHEEER

Other receivables HAb e 508 15 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 42,598 42,597
i EER 12@BABHEEER

Cash at banks HBIRE 18 AA1-AA3 Low risk 12-month ECL 32,713,582 16,692,655
Rk 12EAEHEEER

284,739,640 337,157,214

In term of collection management, the Group monitors

the repayment against the pre-determined repayment

terms and considers to take and conducts these actions

to recover the overdue receivables in a default event:

(i) To negotiate with the counterparty, understand their

financial position and plan for debt restructuring, if

necessary,;

(i) To issue legal letter to the counterparty as a

warning;

(iii)

To appoint external debt collection agency to

recover the debt against the counterparty; and

(iv)

collect the overdue receivable.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. €@ T A (@®)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued) (a) £ET A (&)

Credit risk (Continued)

Although the Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover the credit risk, the directors
of the Company consider these internal control policies
could effectively manage the Group’s credit risk.

The Group’s credit risk exposure is primarily attributable
to its financial assets at amortised cost, including
investments in financial assets at amortised cost, other
receivables and cash at bank.

The credit risk on investments in financial assets at
amortised cost is arisen from the investing bonds issued
by certain listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong.
The Group’s investment strategy is to balance the credit
risk and return by investing in medium risk corporate
bonds. These corporate bonds are always lacking
of independent and public recognised credit ratings
available, as such, management of the Company carried
out additional credit and risk management policy against
these bonds investment:

(@) To review and monitor the portfolio, financial
performance and financial positions of these listed
and unlisted companies on regular basis; and

(b) To prepare impairment review under ECL model
by using historical repayment record and past due
information to consider whether the credit risk
changed since initial recognition.

EEmE (&)
BEASELEFAETMNERTRIEME
RERNEEEERR NAREERS
ZENMEHERETARERAKEENG
Bk -

AEENEERREZRE ELBHKA
HEZUBEE BRAEHEREATHEZY
BEERE  HEMEYHIARRITER

RBERAFEZMBEEREZEFEER
REBETEELTRIFLTRAETH
BREBF - AEBENKRERBEZABKRESD
FRRARES EREERRKE R F
B -ZERREFBETRZBILABNIE
RSBl ARREEEHZEESR
BETHINEEMAREERER:

() EHMAMEBEZEFELMEIFELTA
AMEREMES MBRERMBRR:
P53

(b) BBEABEERTEHRAHERRZ
BREEBBRRENETRERN  AE
BEEREBENRBERARESEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IIRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #=—-%—

ZEAR=THLEE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

For the years ended 30 September 2023 and 2022,
the Group has recognised the expected credit loss on

investments in financial assets at amortised cost as

follows:

29. €T A (&)

(a) €MI A (#\)
EEEE (&)
BHE_Z_=FR-_ZF-__FLA=1TH
IEFE - REE B MR AT R 2 Bt
BEEREZEHREEBENT:

Lifetime ECL

- not credit-
12 month-ECL impaired Total

2HRES

128 AR FEEE
FEER -kEERHE @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
As at 1 October 2021 R-ZB2=-%+A—-H 35,787,775 - 35,787,775
Transfer to non-credit impaired BREZIEERE (8,788,513) 8,788,513 -
Expected credit losses recognised EHRACEREEBE 10,571,956 8,740,730 19,312,686
Expected credit losses disposed BEHEZEHEERE (8,700,812) - (8,700,812)

As at 30 September 2022 and R-BE--5RA=1+AHK

1 October 2022 —E--%+A—-H 28,870,406 17,529,243 46,399,649
Expected credit losses recognised DHAZBHEEER 10,401,092 12,534,648 22,935,740
Expected credit losses redeemed DERZEHEEERE (6,331,277) - (6,331,277)
Expected credit losses reversed EROCEHEEBRE (3,343,129) - (3,343,129)
Expected credit losses written off Bz BREERE (3,676,880) - (3,676,880)
As at 30 September 2023 R-ZB-=#hA=+H 25,920,212 30,063,891 55,984,103

Taking into consideration that there is no default

payment noted in the previous repayment history of

these companies and adequate impairment assessment

under ECL model performed, directors of the Company

consider the credit risk on these investments in financial

assets at amortised cost is manageable.

156 E#AEIRAERAT  CAPITAL VC LIMITED

%EAE R A OB & FRUE S X B HE RO
5 R RAHEEBRRAETRED R
ﬁ: B ARBEERR RFRBHEKRA
ABZUMBEEREZEERR BTIES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. €@ T A (@®)

(a) Financial instruments (Continued) (a) £ET A (&)
Credit risk (Continued) =E R (%)
The credit risk on other receivables is arisen mainly from HthEWRENEERREIZRALER
amounts receivables on disposal of investments. The &2 FEYKIE - AR E KR E KB R RE
Group’s investment strategy is to identify potential private ELERERE THZSEREREETS
equity investment and dispose these equity investment HHPEERNEE —PER NEE B RZ
to a suitable entrepreneur for further development, ErERRHBELZHURDIEBEENF &
the Group will provide financing arrangement to these WA -BRBRZBILEARNEEFL B
entrepreneur to earn a stable interest income. Because EERRBERABESAR KXAREEEY
of lacking of independence and public recognised credit ZEEMEWRREBETEINEERER
ratings available and the credit risk is considered as high, EIRHE

the management of the Company carries out additional
credit and risk management policy against these other

receivables:

(a) To maintain close relationship with these (a) HZEXSHFRFAFZTEH A EH
counterparties and keep track on their financial HB AN
positions;

(b) To review repayment terms and schedule with (b) W IR R SREE - B2 5E Fi
the counterparties in case there is any financial EFAIR ERER &
difficulties; and

(c) To prepare impairment review under ECL model (c) BBFRBATERCERABHERZ
by using historical repayment record and past due FEHEEEERAETRERS  UNE
information to consider whether the credit risk BEERBREBVABRURESELE
changed since initial recognition. Bk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IIRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
For the years ended 30 September 2023 and 2022, the
Group has recognised the expected credit loss on other
receivables and amounts receivables on disposal of
investments are as follows:

29. €@ T A (@®)
(a) €MI A (#\)
EEEE (&)
BHE_Z_=FR-_ZF-__FLA=1TH
IHFE REEDHERH A ERRIE R HE
BEERKFBENEHEEBENT

Lifetime ECL

— credit-
12 month-ECL impaired Total

2HEM

1218 A 78 58 FEBER
FEER -~ =8RE et
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
As at 1 October 2021 R=-ZB=-—-F+A—H 5,610 22,681,682 22,687,292
Expected credit losses recognised T HRZBHEEEIE 3,256,394 14,924,674 18,181,068

As at 30 September 2022 and R-ZE-_—FhLA=T+HK

1 October 2022 —E--F+HA—H 3,262,004 37,606,356 40,868,360
Expected credit losses recognised B R 2 BHIEEEE 1,003,878 9,587,755 10,591,633
Expected credit losses reversed D@ 2 BEEEEIE (62,954) (7,230,779) (7,293,733)
Expected credit losses written off = Hiis 2 FEHAE EEIE - (12,449,998) (12,449,998)
As at 30 September 2023 R=ZB-_=FNAA=1+8 4,202,928 27,513,334 31,716,262

Taking into consideration that there is no default payment
noted in the previous repayment history of these counter
parties and adequate impairment assessment under ECL
model performed, directors of the Company consider the
credit risk on these other receivables are manageable.

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited because the
counter parties are banks with high credit ratings.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is only in Hong Kong. The Group has
concentration of credit risk as 71% (2022: 62%) of
the total other receivables was due from the largest
counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

29. @@ T A (#)
(a) =M I A (4)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk
in respect of settlement of other payables, convertible
bonds and also in respect of its cash flow management.
The Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level
of liquid assets and committed lines of funding to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Directors
monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities, based on undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

HBEZEE

/mﬁﬁiﬂ A,\$E.H—TT Efrﬂf/\?&&f
ﬁiiﬁ@%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁmé&
[2\ B B R - 7 5= [ T R A R HL fh JE S SRR
ﬂ@%%%%i&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%
MRBESRR - AEE B EAERFEE
KEMNFEBEERDERFZENEEESURE
NEMERBRERANRDEST K-

REERBESRARK EFHReRRS
EEVETERE THFNERATRE 2K
o %mﬁ *@}Efﬁﬁi&/ﬂi%’gﬁiuwi
RENH R o

TRINFAEEHBEEER RS PR ZF

BRAWIHER HRERERAESRE (B

%%ﬁﬁ/\f{]ﬂfu HOMENF) R AEHE
EERERNOHZRERYMIR:

On Total

Weighted demand/ One year contractual
average within to Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year two years two years cash flows amount

il RER/ CEES 3]
TR = —%R —FEWF BAME HEREBAR RE{E
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B BT BT B

At 30 September 2023 Z;:_MH =tH

Other payables b = 25,007,917 - = 25,007,917 25,007,917
Overdrafts BEX 20.3% 14,813,705 - - 14,813,705 14,813,705
Convertible bonds MhRES 17.1% 24,118,794 - - 24,118,794 18,511,206
63,940,416 - - 63,940,416 58,332,828

On Total

Weighted demand/ One year contractual
average within to Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year two years two years cash flows amount

ik BER/ AHRER
FiM = —FR" —FEMF BBME HEeRELR REfE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT B AT AT AT

At 30 September 2022 RZE-ZFEAA=1H

Other payables EfEMRFE - 20,034,528 - - 20,034,528 20,034,528
Overdrafts BX 16.0% 6,175,552 - - 6,175,552 6,079,340
Convertible bonds HRRES 17.1% 2,699,798 24,118,794 - 26,818,592 15,811,408
28,909,878 24,118,794 - 53,028,672 41,925,276
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IIRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively;

. the fair value of financial assets suspended from
trading are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on comparable
companies method or net asset value method based
on reliable estimates of forecasted performance of
the assets with reference to market similar product;
and

. the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows and discount rate
estimated with reference to market similar products
and other relevant market information.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities at amortised cost reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group approximate
their fair values due to their immediate or short-term
maturities.

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at end of the
reporting period across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement,
with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement.
The levels are defined as follows:

. Level 1: fair values measured using only Level
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. €@ T A (@®)
(b) Fair value (Continued) (b) AR{E (HF)

«  Level 2: fair values measured using Level 2 inputs, e B FAE R A (AR
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, REF—RRTEZIBTE AR A
and not using significant unobservable inputs. RTNEREATAERE ASIETE
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market RN B B R A SRR A BLS
data are not available; and TISEE B AT &

«  Level 3: fair values measured using significant s E=R-FRAERTABEEAZIE
unobservable inputs. EARNE

2023
—E-=F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 R E=R BE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARBEHABEEE
ZHKEE
— listed securities —FWEH 179,796,119 = = 179,796,119
— derivative financial assets - TEIERBEE - - 801,023 801,023
179,796,119 - 801,023 180,597,142
2022
—EooF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—R F-H F=H B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAAEGABRRE
ZHKEE
- unlisted securities —FLEmES - - 2,147,000 2,147,000
— listed securities —-tmEH 242,197,603 = - 242,197,603
— derivative financial assets ~TETENBEAE - = 3,216,299 3,216,299

242,197,603 5,363,299 247,560,902
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV IIRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Fair value (Continued)
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured

at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The

following table gives information about how the fair

values of these financial assets are determined (in

162 EHARBRAF

particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Financial assets

HHEE

Financial assets at FVTPL

BRAABHABRRER
HHBEE

Listed securities other than
suspended stocks

s (EREERERI)

Unlisted securities

FEMES

2023

—E-CF
HK$
BT

179,796,119
(2022: 242,197,603)
179,796,119

(—%F——

\—%——

242,197,603)
N/A
(2022: 2,147,000)

TEm
(Z2-zF:
2,147,000)

CAPITAL VC LIMITED

Fair value
hierarchy

DAERR

Level 1

E

Level 3

Valuation
technique(s)

fhER

Quoted bid price

FREAE

Discounted cash flow

ERAEDRE

29. €T A (&)

(b) A RE (H&)
REBETUBEEDUSHRESRRZA
REFE-TERRURETZSVBEEAR
BEzBEH (ARMS  PEAOGERI K
BABUR)

Significant Relationships of

unobservable unobservable

inputs Range inputs to fair value

EXTURE TTEERAYEA

BARE gE NMEZBE

N/A N/A N/A

TEE T@f Tif

Free cash flow N/A The higher the free
cash flow, the higher
the fair value

BaRENE ki ERRERENA AnfE
B

Weighted average N/A (2022: 10.0% to The higher the weighted

cost of capital

WEFHEARE

Discount for lack of
marketability
Bz RS

Discount for lack of
control

2 EHRER

20.2%)

average cost of capital,
the lower the fair value

ki MEFHERKALA
(ZZZZF100%  DREWN
£20.2%)

N/A The higher the discount

(2022: 20.5%)

for lack of marketability
of capital, the lower
the fair value

TaR RZEREHUBRELX
(ZTZZF:205%) RArE8)
N/A The higher the discount

(2022: 28.6%)

for lack of control,
the lower the fair value

TER B REEREA
(ZBE-ZF:286%) AnEHN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Fair value (Continued)

Financial assets

BHEE

Derivative component in
relation to the convertible
bonds issued by the Group

BERSEEANTARES
WiTERA

2023

—E-cfF
HK$

BT

801,023

(2022: 3,216,299)

801,023
(ZB-—F:
3,216,299)

Fair value
hierarchy

Level 3

Valuation
technique(s)
and key input(s)
hERIR
IEBARE

Binomial option
pricing model

“RARRETEER

As at 30 September 2023, suspended stocks of listed
securities with carrying value of HK$3,033,300 (2022:
HK$9,034,237) were fully impaired.

There were no other transfers between Level 1 and

Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value

measurements for the year ended 30 September 2023

and 2022. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers

between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of

the reporting period in which they occur.

29. T A (@)
(b) 2 ffE (M)

Significant
unobservable
input(s)
EXATUHE
BARE

Expected volatility

BERE

Risk-free rate
ERRAE
Stock price:
REEHE:

Effective interest rate

i

Lok

\

Relationships of

unobservable
Range inputs to fair value
FTTEERABEA
gE DMEZEE
67.706% The higher the expected
(2022: 100.144%) volatility, the higher the fair
value.
67.706% RERESS RAEER:
(Z5-—F:
100.144% )
4.583% The higher the risk-free rate,
(2022: 4.399%) the lower the fair value.
4.583% EREBNESR ANE
(ZZZ2F:4399%) HiE-
0.16 The higher the stock price,
(2022:0.18) the lower the fair value.
0.16 REERER RAEHE

(ZB-Z%:018)

17.640% The higher effective interest
(2022: 17.406%) rate, the lower the fair value.
17.640% ERFIREE RAREQE-
(ZB-=F:

17.406% )

RZE-—=ZFNA=+H"BEMmES033,300
B (ZZFE - —44:9,03423780) 2 E 1%
EERENETESEBERE

BHE_T-
HtFEE F—HFEE-_FAREFEZHIL
mEMEE TERCAE=M2AEFEZ
BAREH NEBHRXARERER 2

S HR g

—ER-_ZE-_—_FHNA=+H

RARERERZ EOER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. €@ T A (@®)
(b) Fair value (Continued) (b) AAR{E (&)
The reconciliation of Level 3 financial assets is as EoRUBEEZHERAT
follows:
2023 2022
—EB-=F —F-—
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At beginning of the year REH 2,147,000 8,069,180
Disposals HE - (4,982,600)
Loss on fair value change NiREEEEE - (939,580)
Written off 4 48 (2,147,000) -
At end of the year G R - 2,147,000
30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 0. MEFTDHELENBEGEZHIER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFAFMREBEE-Z_=FNA=FTAEK=Z
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash ZZFNAZTHLEFE AEEREEZHEL
changes, during the year ended 30 September 2023 and WEEYY (RRESRIIFREEY) HEETY
30 September 2022. Liabilities arising from financing activities EEMBEARERERXAREREAEELRE
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, ReEnexks)BARATHMERERENEE-
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.
Convertible
bonds
R E
HK$
BT
At 1 October 2021 WZEB-_—F+A—H -
Proceeds on issue convertible bonds BT RIRESH 2 TS FUE 21,000,000
At 30 September 2022, 1 October 2022 and R-BE-_—_FAA=+H —ZZT-_—_F+A—8BK
30 September 2023 —E-=F#hhA=+H 21,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

=FNA=ZTRALFE

3. AR FHBMRR K

2023 2022
—E== —E -
HK$ HK$
78T BT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries A NN £ 40 47
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERTFRIE - E J ot fE YRIE
other receivables 1,022,351 19,292,631
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN = NGIE ¢ 339,594,413 466,228,715
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIREEEY 786,838 614,576
341,403,602 486,135,922
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals BB RIERETEA 3,016,009 3,251,685
Amounts due to subsidiaries JETHT BB A B FIE 53,661,991 53,993,246
56,678,000 57,244,931
Net current assets REBEEFE 284,725,602 428,890,991
Total assets less current liabilities BESBERLESDEE 284,725,642 428,891,038
Non-current liabilities kREBEME
Convertible bonds Al (& 18,511,206 15,811,408
Deferred tax liability R IBE & 410,651 862,206
18,921,857 16,673,614
Net assets EEFE 265,803,785 412,217,424
Capital and reserves EAXAR#E
Share capital A% A 105,032,062 105,032,062
Reserves k& 160,771,723 307,185,362
Total equity attributable to equity holders ARG IRER B A (G 2S5
of the Company 265,803,785 412,217,424

Chan Cheong Yee

Kong Fanpeng

RE=x EN ]
Director Director
EF 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV IIRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #iZ—Z-_=FNA=THILFE

32. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 32. X EREE
Convertible Capital
Share bonds equity reduction Share options  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TRRES

REE ERfE BREAHARE BRERRE ZitER @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B BT B BT B
At 1 October 2021 WZZEZ-F+A—HB 1315163854 - 22,826,010 3,589,496  (970,079,357) 371,500,003

Loss and total comprehensive AEEBERZE

expenses for the year R e - - - - (75,913,545)  (75,913,545)
Placing of new shares EEMRH (258,721) - - - - (258,721)
Exercise of share options Tk - - - (786,550) 786,550 -
Recognition of equity-settled TR LA REEE DA R 17

share-based payments BERMNH - - - 4,097,371 - 4,097,371
Conversion of convertible bonds ~ E# Al E% - 7,760,254 - - - 7,760,254
At 30 September 2022 and R-ZB--%AA=1H

1 October 2022 RZEB-Z%+H5-H 1,314,905,133 7,760,254 22,826,010 6,900,317 (1,045,206,352) 307,185,362
Loss and total comprehensive AEEBERZE

expenses for the year R e - - - - (146,413,639) (146,413,639)
At 30 September 2023 RZEZ=FAA=1H 1,314,905,133 7,760,254 22,826,010 6,900,317 (1,191,619,991) 160,771,723
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P HmRME

For the year ended 30 September 2023 #Z —Z -_=F WA =1THIEFE

32. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in share premium account are distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital reduction reserve

The capital reduction reserve is derived after setting off
of the capital reduction with the accumulated losses as
at the date of the capital reorganisation of the Company
which became effective on 8 February 2013.

Distributability of reserves

At 30 September 2023 and 2022, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for the distribution to the owners
of the Company calculated in accordance with the
laws of the Cayman Islands was HK$153,871,406 and
HK$300,285,045 respectively.

32. X EfREE (®)

(i)

(if)

I 17 5 B
BROERBRZERAXASHSRREMR
EREFASHEARNA BNEERZE
EADIRTFARBERR AIRERAARER
BEERRKEREAMRADARNEERR
BREEBBRERIMNZER-

PR A< Bl R 1o 48

AR BT R EHER AR B RAEA (R
ZE-=FZANBER) BB RAEHDR
RRFEBRESH -

(iii) Bz 2K

RIBZ=FR-_ZT-__FAA=1TAH R
BEHREHEEMFEANHRDIKTAREHE
BAZEHETED R 153,871,406/ 7T K&
300,285,045/ 7t
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B E
A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the AEEBELERMBRARZBERLEIBFEZE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited TlExE CEHaEMEHINDT:

financial statements, is set out as follows:

RESULTS E
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EC-ZF —E-CfF —T-—F —E-% —T-NF
hA=+A NA=Z+H NA=+H AA=+H LA=ZFAH
tEE IHEE EFE FFE EFE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Turnover EEE (92,314,801) (25,149,110) 76,705,162 (52,399,474)  (142,787,678)
(Loss) profit before tax BREi AT (518 &R (149,511,191) (88,125,550) 62,724,232 (105,482,955)  (183,559,559)
Income tax credit FrEHiEe 451,555 - - - -

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to ARTRERAE AENL
equity holders of the Company AEE (FE) & (149,059,636)  (88,125,550) 62,724,232 (105,482,955)  (183,559,559)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHAEE

30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—B-=F —TZZF 25 2 “E-NF

NA=TH NA=tH AA=+H NA=+H NA=+H

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

B B B B BT

Total assets BEBE 378,594,326 511,697,965 554,316,595 489,783,797 576,007,442

Total liabilities EEEE (58,743,479)  (42,787.482)  (28,101,966)  (41,113,078)  (28,881,086)
Total equity attributable to equity holders AR B A AL

of the Company BH0E 319,850,847 468010483 526214629 448670719 547,126,356
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